Readfield Assessors
December 12, 2022, Meeting Agenda
Select Board Meeting starts: 6:00 PM

Meeting starts: 6:00 PM
Meeting ends (unless extended) at 6:30 PM

Tax Abatements

Consider any pending tax abatement requests
Tax Supplements

Consider any pending tax supplements
Other Business

Adjourn
Readfield Select Board
December 12, 2022, Meeting Agenda
Select Board Meeting starts: 6:30 PM
Select Board Meeting ends (unless extended) at 8:30 PM
Pledge of Allegiance

Regular Meeting Items - 5 min.
23-056 - Minutes: Select Board meeting minutes of November 14, 2022.
23-057 - Warrants: #21-24
Communications - 30 min,
Select Board communications. - 10 min.
Staff Reports - 10 min
e Town Manager Report
o Treasurer’s Report - November
Boards, Committees, Commissions & Departments - 5 min.
¢ Board and Committee Minutes (listed separately)
Public Communication - Members of the public may address the Select Board - 5 min.
Appointments, Reappointments, and Resignations - 5 min.
23-058 - Consider the appointment of Kristin Parks as Registrar
New Business - 75 min.
23-059 - Consider proposed Reserve / Carry-forward account changes - 20 min.
23-060 - Conduct a preliminary Capital Plan review - 20 min.
23-061 - Conduct an Emergency Operations Plan review - 15 min.
23-062 - Consider a Community Resiliency Grant proposal - 10 min.
23-063 - Discuss and set the upcoming Select Board meeting schedule - 5 min.
23-064 - Consider abatements for past tax years requiring Select Board approval - 5 min.
Other Business, Upcoming Meetings, and Future Agenda Items - S min,
Adjournment

This mecting will he held in-person at the Town Office
Participate via Zoom at: https://us02web.zoom.us/|/88149608367 or
Call-in at +1 (929) 436-2866 and enter meeting ID: 881 4960 8367 and passcode: 781405




REGULAR MEETING

¢ VIINUTES
o \WARRANTS




Readfield Select Board
December 12, 2022

Readfield Select Board ltem # 23-056
Regular Meeting Minutes — Monday, November 14, 2022 — Unapproved

Select Board Members Present: Dennis Price, Kathryn Woodsum, Sean Keegan, Steve DeAngelis, Carol

Doorenbos
Excused Absent:
Others Attending: Eric Dyer (Town Manager), Anjelica Pittman (Board Secretary), Karen Peterson (Transfer

Station Manager) Ryan Meserve, Ralph Eno, Greg Durgin, George & Erica O’Connor, John & June Cotnoir,
Andy Walsh, Paula Clark

Pledge of Allegiance

Regular Meeting Items - § min.
e 23-047 — Minutes: Select Board meeting minutes of Qctober 17, 2022
» Kathryn motioned to approve, Steve seconded, 5-0 vote in favor
o 23-048 — Warrants: #17-20
» Warrant #17 & 18 — Kathryn motioned to approve, Sean seconded, 5-0 vote in favor
» Warrant #19 & 20 - Kathryn moetioned to approve, Sean seconded, 5-0 vote in favor
Communications - 25 min.
e Select Board Communications — 5 min.

» Carol stated the Veterans Day ceremony held November 11, 2022 was a wonderful ceremony;
Dennis did a great job organizing, and thanked participants.

» Carol asked the Town Manager about the breakdown of costs and payment for the ACO position,
and had concerns about position changeover. Eric responded that the ACO stipend budget covers
payments made to the shelter, ACO time and mileage. Eric also explained that previous turnover
was due to the ACO position being held by Town Staff. The contract changed to an independent
position to minimize staff overtime pay. Any changes to the ACO stipend can be discussed at the
Budget Meeting.

> Sean reported a great turnout for Halloween Spooktacular including the Trunk or Treat, Movie
Night and Pumpkins-a-Glow, 280 kids came through, and he also mentioned homes on Main

Street were festive and the street was full of children trick or treating.

‘77

Kathryn made a motion to request the Select Board use the Select Board account line of $390 in
the budget to go towards gifting Town Staff with Christmas gift baskets, seconded by Sean, vote

in favor 5-0.,

Page 1 of 6 — unapproved




Readfield Select Board

Regular Meeting Minutes — Monday, November 14, 2022 - Unapproved

»

Dennis welcomed some members from the Maranacook High School Golf Team and their coach
Ryan. Ryan explained that the Maranacook Golf Team has 14 teammates, they play at the
Augusta Golf Club, and he stated this year’s team is one of the best he has ever coached. The
kids work really well as a team, are very supportive of each other and they won the State

tournament this year.

e Staff Reports — 5 min.

»
»

Town Manager Report

Treasurers Report — October

e Boards, Committees, Commissions & Departments

»
»

Board & Committee minutes (listed separately)

Dennis thanked the Boards for sending in their minutes

e Public Communication - Members of the public may address the Select Board — 5 min.

>

Ralph Eno presented information regarding the Maranacook Food Pantry at the Middle School
which serves all towns in the RSU district; about 20 families frequent the pantry. The pantry also
provides deliveries to those who cannot get transportation to the pantry, and a local farmer
provides fresh produce. RSU 38 provides the building, thank you notes and administration.
Ralph is trying to get on the June 2023 warrant by gathering signatures for a petition to get a
$1000/year annual allowance/donation from the town to help cover operational costs as the
pantry is currently entirely voluntarily run and managed. He is asking for endorsement from both
the Select Board and Budget Committee. If the petition becomes a warrant and the warrant
passes, administrators for the pantry can reach out to other nearby towns for additional
assistance. Kathryn and Ralph discussed that he will need a total of 157 signatures to meet the
10% threshold to become a warrant article. Eric also commented that he has had three General
Assistance requests just in the prior week but food was not an issue due to the Food Pantry
assistance.

Greg Durgin questioned a letter published in the Community Advertiser by the Select Board
August 13, 2022 wherein Dennis wrote an article to address some resident’s misinformed
communications within the Advertiser. Greg was concerned that the letter was directed at him
and articles he had written for the Advertiser prior to the Select Board article. Dennis responded
to Greg that the Select Board was attempting to be heard and be transparent and informative and

that the letter was not intentionally written to single out Greg or directed at him specifically. The

Page 2 of 6 — unapproved




Readfield Select Board
Regular Meeting Minutes — Monday, November 14, 2022 — Unapproved

Board’s goal with their article was to ensure information going into the Advertiser is factual and
that their perspective was also published.

» (Qreg also noted that the Library has computers for residents to use to complete the
Comprehensive Plan Survey if they do not have access to a computer or internet otherwise.

Appointments, Reappointments, and Resignations 5 min.
e 23-049 — Consider the appointment of Christine Sammons to the Budget Committee

» Kathryn motioned to approve the appointment beginning November 14, 2022 through June 30,
2024, Sean seconded, 5-0 vote in favor

e 23-050 — Consider the appointment of George O’Connor as an alternate member of the Planning Board

» Kathryn motioned to approve the appointment beginning November 14, 2022 through June 30,

2026, Sean seconded, 5-0 vote in favor
Old Business S min.
e 23-043 - Discuss and develop Select Board budget goals — 15 min.

» Motion made by Sean fo extend the meeting another 30 minutes, seconded by Steve, vote 5-0 in
favor

» Sean suggested a goal of increasing revenue streams for the town beach with vendors, space
reconstruction, equipment, etc.

» Dennis’ goal suggestion is to put on the warrant a question asking to fund recreation and
conservation through private funding and grants, he would also like to see ADA compliant
pathway to improve beach access to residents with disabilities.

» Carol would like to consider a mileage stipend for the ACO, but would prefer not to spend any
more than is needed in general.

» Kathryn’s goal ideas are to fund all need and necessary expenses to maintain our Town and
programs. Secondly, consider reducing, or postponing, wanted future projects not yet in
progress. Thirdly, fund the Fairgrounds Project through grants, fundraising, ARPA and some tax
funds if needed. Kathryn also suggested that rather than a flat budget, the town spend revenue
coming in, or a specific dollar amount. That what we spend as a town is based off of only what
has been proposed for spending.

New Business - 45 min,
o 23-051 — Consider a Liquor License for the Weathervane Restaurant — 10 min.

» Sean motioned to waive a Public Hearing, Kathryn seconded, 5-0 vote in favor

Page 3 of 6 — unapproved




Readfield Select Board
Regular Meeting Minutes — Monday, November 14, 2022 — Unapproved

» Sean motioned to approve the Weathervane Liquor License from December 15, 2022 through

December 14, 2023, seconded by Steve, vote 5-0 in favor
e 23-052 — Consider management recommendations for grassland areas at the Fairgrounds — 5 min.

» Andy Walsh from the Conservation Commission attended to discuss the grassland management
in town. As for the fields at the Fairgrounds specifically, the Commission would like to manage
the fields for their conservation value, specifically the pollinators and Monarch Butterflies. Andy
suggested not mowing during the summer (May 1* to October 1*), but waiting until after
October 1* each year after the Milkweed and Goldenrod have gone to seed. In regards to woody
vegetation that may grow back if mowing is, the suggestion is to mow one half of the field one
year and the other half the next, and readjust that schedule as necessary depending on the
reevaluation. The Commission is open to having a conversation with Matt Seems who does the
mowing to discuss a plan. As these suggestions are still in draft form, and not much in the draft
changes what is already in place, Kathryn suggested possibly having a workshop in December
with the Conservation Commission, someone from Trails and Matt Seems to work together and
accomplish everyone’s goals and piece are the different places in town in one place.

» Andy also suggested adding something informational to the Kiosk to explain why the mowing is
done the way it is to educate the public.

# [Eric said that the Town has been able to implement this plan effectively over the past three years,
he likes the idea of having it be more universally applicable, and he agrees that it is a good
management plan.

e 23-053 — Hold a follow-up discussion with Chairperson Clark on Planning Board remote meeting
participation — 10 min.

» Paula Clark responded to questions/concerns from Carol at the previous Select Board meeting
pertaining to the Planning Board’s remote and in person meeting, Paula discussed with Planning
Board members the reasons behind whether they meet in person or remotely, some reasons
members gave were that they had a general discomfort with meeting in large groups; some
members have immunocompromised relatives, some have their own personal health concerns.
Remote participation also aids in flexibility with members schedule to meet the quorum for
Planning Board meetings, which also minimizes absences. Some members travel for work or
have spouses who travel which makes meeting in person more difficult due to childcare or being

out of town altogether. The board as whole did not feel as though meeting remotely negatively

Page 4 of 6 — unapproved




Readfield Select Board
Regular Meeting Minutes — Monday, November 14, 2022 — Unapproved

affected their ability to conduct meetings, especially since meeting agendas and materials are
emailed to each member in advance of each meeting by the CEO.

» Sean thanked Paula for thoughtfully providing feedback, Steve commented that the Planning
Board requires a certain level of expertise and he trusts that they accomplish their work
effectively for the Board. Kathryn felt the Planning Board was singled out unfairly as the Remote
Meeting Policy has been upheld and followed properly by the Board. Kathryn called for a
motion that the Select Board offer appreciation for the Planning Board in performing their work,
Sean seconded vote 4-1 in favor.

» Kathryn motioned to extend the meeting for 15 minutes, seconded by Steve, vote 5-0 in favor

e 23-054 — Consider a revised Transfer Station Fee Schedule — 5 min.

» The revised proposal for Transfer Station fees saw some increases due to vendor increases. Bulbs
and paint recycling are free because they do not cost the town anything to recycle. Smoke
detectors do cost $10 to recycle, but to encourage residents to recycle them (due to their mercury
content), the fee schedule will still offer smoke detectors be turned in to the Transfer Station for
{ree. Fees on items outside of household trash are based on the cost of disposal by the companies
that haul those items away; there is no profit margin for the Transfer Station. As for the proposal,
some small typos will be corrected and sent to Eric.

» Propane fees have been increasing every couple of weeks from the vendor, the Transfer Station
does broker those out through Maine Resource Recovery Association (MRRA), so an increase
for propane will also be necessary.

# Kathryn motioned to approve the Transfer Station fee schedule as presented providing that
clerical edits will be made, seconded by Carol, vote 5-0 in favor.

e 23-055 — Consider a plan for auditor recommended revisions to our capital reserve accounting — 5 min,

» Audit was presented several months ago, concerns around how reserve accounts were tracked,
Eric and Teresa have since met with the auditors to look at those accounts more analytically and
track accounts through Trio rather than through excel including creating special accounts for
special revenues and reserves. The town is looking to do a policy change that prohibits excess
money at the end of the year being put into reserve account. The new process will more
specifically control money going into accounts and money going out by giving written

descriptions of what each reserve account is and its purpose to better assist the Board in tracking

Page § of 6 — unapproved




Readfield Select Board
Regular Meeting Minutes — Monday, November 14, 2022 — Unapproved

those transactions. It is being proposed that a restructure/adjustment of accounts be done to meet
auditing standards and implement in January or February of 2023,
» Kathryn also mentioned that the Transfer Station will be made a separate entity outside of the
Readfield budget in Trio.
Other Business, Upcoming Meetings, and Future Agenda Items - 5 min.
Motion to adjourn made by Steve at 8:50PM seconded by Sean, vote 5-0 in favor

Adjournment

Minutes submitted by Anjelica Pittman, Board Secretary

Page 6 of 6 — unapproved




Nov. 21, 2022 Warrant Summary

Readfield Select Board
December 12, 2022

Item # 23-057

Signature
5
Warrant |Journal Warrant Required |Approvatl
#: #: Amount Type: SB Reviewer: Date:
21 206 $° 99,362.45 |Warrant  [S. DeAngelis Three 11/21/2022
A 206 S 2,860.00 |State Fees |S. DeAngelis  |One 11/21/2022
B 206 S 6,252.45 |State Fees |S. DeAngelis  |One 11/21/2022
22 214 § 21,321.49 {Payroll S. DeAngelis  |One 11/21/2022
SUM $ 120,683.94
[

Indicates public review is required following prior approval

Indicates public review and approval are both required




Warrant #21 & 22

$120,683.94

To the Treasurer of Readfield:

Dates: 11/23/2022

This is to certify that there is due and chargeable to the accounts listed below the sums
indicated, and you are directed to pay the amounts listed to the payees named herein.

Payee Account Amount Check #'s
EMPLOYEES Payroll $21,321.49 71934-71943
171934-171947
VARIOUS VENDORS Accounts

Payable $99,362.45 71897-71933

Total $120,683.94

Date Signed:
Dennis Price

Steven DeAngelis

Carol Doorenbos

Sean Keegan

Kathryn Woodsum




Readfield A [/ P Check Register 11/21/2022
12:33 PM Bank: Androscoggin Bank Page 1
Type Check Amount Date Wrnt  Payee
P 939 270.40 11/23/22 21 0031 Central Maine Power Co
P 999 358.63 11723722 21 0031 Central Maine Power Co
P 999 155.82 1123722 21 0031 Central Maine Power Co
P 71897 2,860.00 11/10/22 2] 0086 SECRETARY OF STATE (MOTOR VEH)
P 71898 6,252.45 11/17/22 21 0086 SECRETARY OF STATE (MOTOR VEH)
R 71899 1,903.46 11723722 21 0391 Atlantic Recycling Equipment, LLC
R 71900 108.60 11723722 21 0024 Baker & Taylor, Inc
R 71901 519.00 11723422 21 0384 BDS Waste Disposal, Inc
R 71902 11571 11/23/22 21 0288 Cardmember Service
R 71903 2,200.00 11723122 21 0447 Cartographic Associates, Inc
R 71904 1,513.00 11/23/22 21 033t Central Maine Area Agency on Aging
R 71905 8,537.67 1172322 21 0034 Cobbossee Watershed District
R 71906 65.00 11/23/22 21 0035 Community Advertiser
R 71907 164.92 11723722 21 0072 Consolidated Communications
R 71908 2,000.00 11723722 21 0591 David Ledew
R 71909 85.02  11/23/22 21 0552 D)'s Municipal Supply
R 71910 885.07 11423722 21 0810 Eric Dyer
R 71911 1,579.77 11723722 21 0043 Fire Tech and Safety
R 71912 351.38 11/23/22 21 0823 GONETSPEED
R 71913 69.86 11723722 21 0206 Grainger
R 71914 28.00 11723722 21 0751 Group Dynamic Inc
R 71815 1,000.00 11/23/22 21 0518 Kennebec Behavioral Health
R 71916 76.00 11/23/22 21 0083 Kennebec Cnty Registry Of Deeds
R 71917 1,944.05 11723722 21 0760 KVCOG
R 71918 144.00 11723422 21 0619 Lamey-Wellehan Shoes
R 71919 8,233.10 11/23/22 21 0065 MAINE MUNICIPAL EMP. HEALTH
R 71920 90.00 11/23/22 21 0303 MAINE TOWN & CITY CLERKS ASS'N
R 71921 640.00 11423722 21 0891 Mid Maine Generator
R 71922 55.00 11723722 21 0139 MMTCTA
R 71923 11,232.38 11/23/22 21 0621 New England Salt Company, LLC
R 71924 190.00 11/23f22 21 0360 North Coast Services LLC
R 71925 130.41 11/23/22 21 0858 PETTY CASH
R 71926 77.37 11/23/22 21 0725 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services
R 71927 420.00 11/23/22 21 0841 PretiFlaherty
R 71928 60.94 11/23/22 21 0406 SAM'S CLUB
R 71929 44,858.33 11/23/22 21 0008 Scott Horne Construction
R 71930 23.00 1172322 21 0561 Shredding on Site
R 71931 51.62 11723122 21 0021 Sonya Clark
R 71932 50.13 11/23/22 21 0462 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN
R 71933 62.36 11723722 21 0273 WINTHROP AUTO SUPPLY
Total 99,362.45
Count
Checks 40
Voids 0




Readfield
12:34 PM

Vendor-------

Warrant Recap 11/21/2022
Page 1
Warrant 21

Amount Account-«--------

00391 Atlantic Recycling Equipment, LLC
00024 Baker & Taylor, Inc

00024 Baker & Taylor, Inc

00024 Baker & Taylor, Inc

00384 BDS Waste Disposal, Inc

00288 Cardmember Service

00288 Cardmember Service

00447 Cartographic Associates, Inc
00331 Central Maine Area Agency on Aging
00031 Central Maine Power Co

00031 Central Maine Power Co

00031 Central Maine Power Co

00034 Cobbossee Watershed District
00035 Community Advertiser

00072 Censolidated Communications
00072 Consolidated Communications
00072 Consolidated Communications
00591 David Ledew

00552 D's Municipal Supply

00810 Eric Dyer

00043 Fire Tech and Safety

00043 Fire Tech and Safety

00823 GONETSPEED

00823 GONETSPEED

00206 Grainger

00791 Group Dynamic Inc

00791 Group Dynamic Inc

00518 Kennebec Behavioral Health
00083 Kennebec Cnty Registry Of Deeds
00760 KVCOG

00619 Lamey-Wellehan Shoes

00065 MAINE MUNICIPAL EMP, HEALTH
00065 MAINE MUNICIPAL EMP. HEALTH
00065 MAINE MUNICIPAL EMP. HEALTH
00065 MAINE MUNICIPAL EMP. HEALTH
00065 MAINE MUNICIPAL EMP. HEALTH
00303 MAINE TOWN & CITY CLERKS ASS'N
00831 Mid Maine Generator

00891 Mid Maine Generator

00139 MMTCTA

00621 New England Salt Company, LLC
00621 New England Salt Company, LLC
00360 North Coast Services LLC

00858 PETTY CASH

1,903.46 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER 5TA - EQUIP O,R &M / EQUIP MAINT
30.68 COMM SERVICE / Library - COMMUNITY SV / LIBRARY COLL
16.76 COMM SERVICE / Library - COMMUNITY SV / LIBRARY COLL
61.16 COMM SERVICE / Library - COMMUNITY SV / LIBRARY COLL

519.00 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - CONTRACT SVC / Tires

83.93 Rds & Drain / Winter Maint - PUBLIC WAYS / SIGNS/SUPPLY
31.78 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - ADMIN / OFFICE SUP

2,200.00 UNCLASSIFIED / Revaluation - CONTRACT SVC / ASSESSING

1,513.00 UNCLASSIFIED f NON-PROFIT - ADMIN / MISC,

270,40 REC,PARKS/AT / BEACH - UTILITIES / ELECTRIC

358.63 Maintenance / Bldg Maint - UTILITIES / ELECTRIC

155.82 Maintenance / Bidg Maint - UTILITIES / ELECTRIC
8,537.67 REGIONAL ORG f COBBOSSEE WD - ASSESSMENTS / COBBOSSEE WD

65.00 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - ADMIN / ADVERTISING

50.66 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - UTILITIES / TELEPHONE
54.13 PROTECTION / FIRE DEPART - UTILITIES / TELEPHONE
60.13 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - UTILITIES / TELEPHONE

2,000.00 GENERAL GOVT / Assessing - CONTRACT SVC f ASSESSING
85.02 Maintenance / Gen Maint - EQUIP O,R &M / PPG

885.07 GENERAL GOVT / Attorney Fee - ADMIN / ATTORNEY FEE
1,384.77 PROTECTION / FIRE DEPART - EQUIP O,R &M / FIRE EQUIP

195.00 PROTECTION / FIRE DEPART - EQUIP O,R &M / PPG

330.56 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - UTILITIES / TELEPHONE

20.82 COMM SERVICE / Library - UTILITIES / TELEPHONE

69.86 Maintenance / Gen Maint - EQUIP O,R &M / PPG

20.00 GENERAL GOVT / Insurance - INSURANCE / HRA
8.00 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - INSURANCE / HRA

1,000.00 UNCLASSIFIED / NON-PROFIT - ADMIN / MISC.
76.00 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - ADMIN / RECORDING

1,944.05 GENERAL GOVT / Grant/Plan - ADMIN / MISC.

144,00 Maintenance / Gen Maint - PERSONNEL / CLOTHING
2,384.72 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - INSURANCE / HEALTH INS
5,608.13 GENERAL GOVT / Insurance - INSURANCE / HEALTH INS

100.50 GENERAL FUND / HEALTH INSUR

126.24 GENERAL FUND / IPP

13.51 GENERAL FUND / VSP Vision
90.00 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - ADMIN / TRAIN & CONF
260.00 Maintenance / Bldg Maint - BUILDING O&M / Generator
380.00 Maintenance / Bldg Maint - BUILDING Q&M / MAINTENANCE
55.00 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - ADMIN / TRAIN & CONF

8,404.28 Rds & Drain / Winter Maint - PUBLIC WAYS / Erosion/Salt

2,828.10 Rds & Drain [ Winter Maint - PUBLIC WAYS / Erosion/Salt

190.00 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - CONTRACT SVC f UNIV WST DSP

122.51 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - ADMIN / ELECTIONS




Readfield Warrant Recap 11/21/2022
12:34 PM Page 2
Warrant 21
Vendor------- Amount Account----------
00858 PETTY CASH 7.90 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - ADMIN / POSTAGE
00725 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services 77.37 GENERAL GOVT / Office Equip - ADMIN / POSTAGE
00841 PretiFlaherty 420.00 GENERAL GOVT /[ Attorney Fee - ADMIN / ATTORNEY FEE
00406 SAM'S CLUB 59.94 Maintenance / Bldg Maint - BUILDING O&M f SUPPLIES
00406 SAM'S CLUB 1.00 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - ADMIN / MISC,
00008 Scott Horne Construction 44,858.33 Rds & Drain / Winter Maint - PUBLIC WAYS / CONTRACT SVC
00086 SECRETARY OF STATE (MOTOR VEH) 2,860,00 GENERAL FUND / Motor Veh Fe
00086 SECRETARY OF STATE (MOTOR VEH) 6,252.45 GENERAL FUND / Motor Veh Fe
00561 Shredding on Site 23.00 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - ADMIN / OFFICE SUP
00021 Sonya Clark 47.67 COMM SERVICE / Library - ADMIN / MISC.
00021 Sonya Clark 3.95 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - ADMIN / POSTAGE
00462 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN 15.38 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - ADMIN f MISC,
00462 STAPLES CREDIT PLAN 34.75 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - ADMIN / MISC,
00273 WINTHROP AUTO SUPPLY 48.69 Maintenance / Veh/Eg Maint - EQUIP O,R &M / EQUIP MAINT
00273 WINTHROP AUTO SUPPLY 13.67 Maintenance [/ Veh/Eq Maint - EQUIP O,R &M / Dump Truck
Prepaid Total-- 9,897.30
Current Total--  89,465.15
Warrant Total-- 99,362.45




Dec. 5, 2022 Warrant Summary

Signature
s
Warrant [Journal Warrant Required |Approval
#: #: Amount Type: SB Reviewer: |: Date:
23 225 S 27,446.33 |Payroll S. DeAngelis  {Three
A S - |State Fees |S. DeAngelis  |[One
B S - |State Fees (S. DeAngelis  |One
24 224 S 416,600.30 |Warrant  |S. DeAngelis One
SUM $ 444,046.63
pd
L~ |indicates public review is required following prior approval
‘ Indicates public review and approval are both required




Warrant #23 & 24

Teeasured’s Wamant

$444,046.63

To the Treasurer of Readfield:

Dates: 12/08/2022

This is to certify that there is due and chargeable to the accounts listed betow the sums
indicated, and you are directed to pay the amounts listed to the payees named herein.,

Payee Account Amount Check #'s
EMPLOYEES Payroll $27,446.33 71944-71967
171944-171959
VARIOUS VENDORS Accounts

Payable $416,600.30 71968-71989

Total $444,046.63

Date Signed:
Dennis Price

Steven DeAngelis

Carol Doorenbos

Sean Keegan

Kathryn Woodsum




Readfield A / P Check Register 12/05/2022
2:25PM Bank: Androscoggin Bank Page 1
Type Check Amount Date wWmt  Payee
P 47 40.71 12/08/22 24 0047 Shift 4
P 295 184.91 12/08/22 24 0295 US CELLULAR
P 999 87.56 12/08/22 24 0031 Central Maine Power Co
P 999 56.02 12/08/22 24 0031 Central Maine Powet Co
R 71968 2,575.44 12/08/22 24 0599 Archie's Inc.
R 71569 202.80 12/08/22 24 0257 Central Petroleum Company
R 71970 1,244.,52 12/08/22 24 0704 Fabian Oil
R 71971 390.00 12/08/22 24 0088 Hannaford Food & Drug #0239
R 71972 312.14 12/08/22 24 0629 Irving Oil Marketing, Inc
R 71973 B,437.50 12/08/22 24 0908 Kennebec Regional Dev Authority
R 71974 366.80 12/08f22 24 0223 Longfellow's Greenhouses
R 71975 373.07 12/08/22 24 0152 Lowe's
R 71976 23,189.72 12/08/22 24 0458 Lucas Striping, LLC
R 71977 637.50 12/08f22 24 0218 MAINE RESOQURCE RECOVERY ASSCC
R 71978 120.00 12/08/22 24 0139 MMTCTA
R 71979 310,997.46  12/08/22 24 0069 Regional School Unit#38
R 71980 1,500.00 12/08f22 24 0605 RHR Smith & Company
R 71981 44,858.33 12/08/22 24 0008 Scott Horne Construction
R 71982 2,810.03 12/08f22 24 0086 SECRETARY OF STATE (MOTOR VEH)
R 71983 4,714.97 12/08/22 24 0086 SECRETARY OF STATE (MOTOR VEH)
R 71984 13.17 12/08f22 24 0696 Spectrum
R 71985 449 .87 12/08/22 24 0313 Toshiba Financial Services
R 71986 80.00  12/08/22 24 0100 TREAS,, STATE OF MAINE (DOGS)
R 71987 1,313.59 12/08/22 24 0098 TREAS., STATE OF MAINE (IFW)
R 71988 10,939.66 12/08/22 24 0709 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF PORTLAND
R 71989 704.53 12/08/22 24 0094 WHITE SIGN
Total 416,600.30
Count
Checks 26
Voids 0




Readfield Warrant Recap 12/05/2022

2:25PM Page 1
Warrant 24

Vendor--———- Amount Account----------

00599 Archie's Inc. 2,575.44 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - CONTRACT SVC / TRASH TIPPNG

00031 Central Maine Power Co 87.56 COMM SERVICE / Street Light - COMMUNITY SV / STREET LIGHT

00031 Central Maine Power Co 56.02 PROTECTION / Tower Sites - UTILITIES / ELECTRIC

00257 Central Petroleum Company 202,80 Maintenance / Veh/Eq Maint - EQUIP O,R &M / FUEL/QIL

00704 Fabian Qil 193.50 Maintenance / Bldg Maint - UTILITIES / HEATING

00704 Fabilan Qil 1,051.02 Maintenance / Bldg Maint - UTILITIES / HEATING

00088 Hannaford Food & Drug #0239 390.00 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - ADMIN / Selectboard

00629 Irving Oil Marketing, Inc 104.07 Maintenance / Veh/Eq Maint - EQUEP O,R &M / FUEL/OIL

00629 Irving Ol Marketing, Inc 45.38 Maintenance / VehfEg Maint - EQUIP O,R &M / FUEL/OIL

00629 Irving OIl Marketing, Inc 41.33 Maintenance / VehfEq Maint - EQUIP O,R &M / FUEL/OIL

00629 Irving Cil Marketing, Inc 121.36 Maintenance / Veh/Eq Maint - EQUIP O,R &M / FUEL/OIL

00908 Kennebec Regional Dev Authority 8,437.50 REGIONAL ORG / First Park - FINANCIAL / FIRSTPARK IN

00223 Longfellow's Greenhouses 366.80 CEMETERIES / CEMETERIES - BUILDING O&M / GROUNDS

00152 Lowe's 2348 Maintenance / Bidg Maint - BUILDING O&M / MAINTENANCE

00152 Lowe's 48.33 Maintenance / Bldg Maint - BUILDING O&M / SUPPLIES

00152 Lowe's 13.96 Maintenance / Veh/Eq Maint - EQUIP O, &M / EQUIP MAINT

00152 Lowe's 54.01 Maintenance / Bldg Maint - BUILDING O&M / MAINTENANCE

00152 Lowe's 121.52 Rds & Drain / Road Maint - PUBLIC WAYS / PATCHING

00152 Lowe's 47.53 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - UTILITIES / LAVATORY

00152 Lowe's 21,64 Maintenance / Bldg Maint - BUILDING O&M / SUPPLIES

00152 Lowe's 36.91 Maintenance / Veh/Eq Maint - EQUIP O,R &M / FUEL/OIL

00152 Lowe's 5.69 Maintenance / Gen Maint - EQUIP O,R &M [ Pickup Truck

00458 Lucas Striping, LLC 23,189.72 Rds & Drain / Road Maint - PUBLIC WAYS / CONTRACT SVC

00218 MAINE RESOURCE RECOVERY ASSQOC 540.00 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - CONTRACT SVC / FREON DISP

00218 MAINE RESOURCE RECOVERY ASSOC 97.50 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - CONTRACT SVC / DEMO TIPPING

00139 MMTCTA 120.00 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - ADMIN / MEMBERSHIPS

00069 Regional Schoo! Unit#38 971.78 Maintenance / Veh/Eq Maint - EQUIP O,R &M / FUEL/CIL

00069 Regional Schoo! Unit#38 566.93 PROTECTION / FIRE DEPART - EQUIP O,R &M / FUEL/OIL.

00069 Regional Sthool Unit#38 309,458.75 EDUCATION / RSU#38 - ASSESSMENTS / RSU#38 PYMT

00605 RHR Smith & Company 1,500.00 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - CONTRACT SVC / AUDIT SERV

00008 Scott Horne Construction 44,858.33 Rds & Drain / Winter Maint - PUBLIC WAYS / CONTRACT sVC

00086 SECRETARY OF STATE (MOTOR VEH) 2,810.03 GENERAL FUND / Motor Veh Fe

00086 SECRETARY OF STATE {(MOTOR VEH) 4,714.97 GENERAL FUND / Motor Veh Fe

00047 Shift 4 40.71 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - ADMIN / OFFICE SUP

00696 Spectrum 13.17 COMM SERVICE / Readfield TV - UTILITIES / ELEC COMM

00313 Toshiba Financial Services 449.87 GENERAL GOVT / Office Equip - EQUIP O,R &M / OFFICE LEASE

00100 TREAS., STATE OF MAINE (DOGS) 80.00 GENERAL FUND / Dog Fees Sta

00098 TREAS., STATE OF MAINE (IFW) 1,312.79 GENERAL FUND / Rec Veh Fees

00098 TREAS., STATE OF MAINE (IFW) 0.80 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - ADMIN / OFFICE SUP

00295 US CELLULAR 36.98 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - PERSONNEL / TM Mile/Phon

00295 US CELLULAR 36.98 GENERAL GOVT / Code Enforce - UTILITIES / CELL PHONE

00295 US CELLULAR 73.97 Maintenance / Gen Maint - UTILITIES / CELL PHONE

00295 US CELLULAR 36.98 COMM SERVICE / Animal Cntrl - UTILITIES / CELL PHONE

00709 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF PORTLAND 1,643.63 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - CONTRACT SVC / DEMO TIPPING




Readfield

Warrant Recap 12/05/2022
2:25 PM Page 2
Warrant 24
Vendor------- Amount Account-----=----
00709 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF PORTLAND 2,795.00 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - CONTRACT SVC / TS HAULING
00709 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF PORTLAND 50.00 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - CONTRACT SVC / TS CONTAINER
00709 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF PORTLAND 6,451.03 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - CONTRACT SVC / TRASH TIPPNG
00094 WHITE SIGN 704.53 Rds & Drain / Road Maint - PUBLIC WAYS / SIGNS/SUPPLY
Prepaid Total-- 369.20

Current Total-- 416,231.10

Warrant Total-- 416,600.30




COMMUNICATIONS

o SELECT BOARD
e STAFF REPORTS
¢ BOARDS & COMMITTEES
e PuBLIC COMMUNICATIONS




Readfield Trails Committee Minutes
September 28, 2022

Present: Nancy Buker, Jackie Drouin, Greg Durgin, Greg Leimbach, Rob Peale, Holly Rahmlow,
SB Chair Dennis Price

Excused: Paul Bessette, Steve Hayes, Megan Lachapelle, Henry Whittemore

Rob opened meeting at 7:15 p.m.
Jackie agreed to be timekeeper

Greg D. moved that minutes from July be approved; Holly seconded. Minutes approved
unanimously.

Jackie presented the treasurer’s report. She noted that she’d made a mistake in the handout,
but that our balance is currently $5,730.79 after additional funds were deposited. She said she
would email a corrected report to the committee.

Selectboard Chair Dennis Price joined the committee to discuss a few issues. Rob said that
littering and dog waste continue to be a problem at the Fairgrounds. Rob spoke to the town
manager about it and a receptacle was placed at the parking lot. Rob asked Dennis about how
that is working out, noting that both trash and recyclables end up in the can. He suggested that
perhaps we could put out a separate container for recyclables. Dennis said that is an option and
reported that so far the receptacle seems to be resulting in less littering.

Rob asked Dennis if he was aware of the Morrill Road trail and the need for a culvert and
landing to cross Route 17, a project that has remained in limbo for a while. Dennis said he
would look into it.

Another possible project is the need for a culvert at at least one or possibly two road crossings
at the Esker Trail, which could be done with other work at the Transfer Station.

Dennis asked if it would be possible to post a QR code at the trailheads to bring up the map. It
would be a good way to promote the trails. He said he would do create the codes himself. The
maps are on the Readfield website, and Dennis can get them from it.



Dennis also suggested using the trails for a 5K event at Heritage Days. The committee hasn't
sponsored an event in the past few years. Greg L. noted that he has investigated the
international group Volks Vanderham and a possible fall event.

Rob told Dennis about a culvert by the cemetery that needs to be reset. Greg L. said he might
be able to do it with his tractor and one other person. Rob said it’s something he doesn’t want
to do with the Marancook students next month for safety reasons.

Dennis, who works for the town of Monmouth, said that Monmouth is looking to create a trail
behind Cumston Hall, and he would like to connect some of the people there with our
committee to provide some information in getting started. This trail would allow the library to
have a Story Walk.

Rob said he talked to Brian about the trail at Carleton Pond, and he is okay with us proceeding
using a temporary kiosk and leaving the gate unlocked, but closed, to allow people to park. We
can’t spend any funds on this project, unless it’s something that can be removed later. Rob said
he wants a simple kiosk. The regular ones are too expensive.

We discussed the work day with the Maranacook students at the Fairgrounds. Greg D. said
United Way has provided the kids with shovels, rakes and gloves. We have five wheelbarrows,
and Greg L. is going to move some of the blue rock with his tractor. Greg D. asked if we are
going to put down geotech. Greg L. noted that it isn’t really effective to keep down grass and
weeds, so we decided against it.

Greg D. said that the town has been maintaining the Mill Stream area, but the leaves will need
to be raked eventually.

Jackie said that the Fogg trail is fine.

Greg D. said that Bob Harris is turning a piece of bark with a blaze on it that fell off a tree into a
plague to be presented to Milt to thank him for all his work blazing. Greg said that they are
planning a presentation and will also include the Conservation Commission.

Greg D. said that Dana Therrien, who has previously helped fund Trails, is interested in building
a trail at the Fairgrounds. He will come to a meeting and make a presentation.

At our October 26 meeting we will look into having the presentation by Dana and honoring
Milt.

Greg L. said he hasn’t done much about the Morrill Road trail, but it is getting used despite the
lack of the culvert and the landing spot on Route 17. Nancy expressed concern about using the



snowmobile trails on the former Saunders property. We cannot promote their use officially or
on the map.

Nancy said she doesn’t think the trash and the dog waste at the Fairgrounds parking lot is our
responsibility, that it is up to the town to maintain the parking lot.

Greg D. moved we adjourn. Meeting adjourned at 8:26 p.m.

Minutes prepared and submitted by Holly Rahmiow



Readfield Trails Committee Minutes
October 26, 2022

Present: Paul Bessette, Nancy Buker, Greg Durgin, Steve Hayes, Greg Leimbach, Rob Peale,
Holly Rahmlow, Henry Whittemore, Jerry Bley, Bob and Jeanne Harris, Brenda and Howard
Lake, Milt Wright

Excused: Jackie Drouin, Megan Lachapelle

Rob opened meeting at 7:15 p.m.
Henry agreed to be timekeeper

Steve and Bob announced the Trailblazer Award for Milt, who has been marking the
Fairgrounds trails. Some people cannot see blue and blue is always difficult to see in dim light,
so Milt marked them with yellow. The award is a plaque designed and made by Bob from a
piece of birch bark with a yellow Milt blaze that Steve found on a trail.

Nancy moved that minutes from September be approved; Henry seconded. Minutes approved
unanimously.

Jackie was absent, so there was no treasurer’s report.

Rob reported that he, Howard and Brenda, Greg L. and Greg D. have been working on the
Carlton Pond trail and much of the work is done. It has been blazed and much of it cleared, with
just a little bit more work to do. Rob is hoping to open it in the next couple of weeks after
checking with Brian at the Greater Augusta Utility District. He is planning on making a kiosk and
putting it on a tree.

A group of students from Kents Hill School are going to work at the Fairgrounds on Tuesday,
Nov. 1 {rain date Thursday, Nov. 3}. About eight students and several Trails members will
spread bluestone. Howard has volunteered to move some of the bluestone with his tractor.

Rob asked if anyone wanted to take on the job of posting the QR codes. Committee discussed
how to proceed to make it easier, as the kiosks are difficult to open. It was noted that it might
be a good idea to put the name of the trail under the QR code and print them on adhesive
paper. Copies Etc. might be a good resource for that. Paul said he would look into it.




Rob said that Eric told him we are supposed to get regular updates from Trail Committee
members who also serve on the Comprehensive Plan Committee, Conservation Commission,
and Recreation Committee on the activities of those committees, so he asked Greg L. to update
us on the Comp Plan, which Greg said is nearly done. Currently the committee is waiting for the
results of a survey, which has been distributed and more surveys will be available on Election
Day for voters to pick up.

Greg D. updated us on the Conservation Commission, which has overseen a recent harvest at
the town forest and earned the town about $15,000. The CC has also done some cleanup after
the harvest and cut down some overgrown areas. They also sent a response to a proposal from
the Comprehensive Planning Committee to in some way oversee the overlapping interest of
Trails, the Recreation Committee and the Conservation Commission.

Greg L. noted that the Recreation Committee is very active and wants to do even more for the
town. This weekend is Trunk or Treat followed by a movie.

Henry asked if the Selectboard still has liaisons that attend committee meetings and report
back. No one seemed to know, but it seems as though that faded out.

Stewards reported on their trails. Steve thanked Paul and Jemelie for cutting down a fallen
birch. He said there was another that may require a tractor to direct its fall. It was suggested
that the town might take care of it, since it’s a liability.

Greg L. noted that the town still hasn’t placed the culvert for the Morrill Road trail. It can be
difficult to access without the culvert. People are already using the trail as is, however.

Rob said that the Esker Trail is in good shape and that the bamboo is under contro! for now.
Next year some more wood chips might be needed.

The budget for next year needs to be planned. We will need more bluestone. Greg D. suggested
we might buy a wheelbarrow. The culvert installations need to wait for the town to act. Steve
suggested we might want to buy some more signs. He said that making your way through the
town forest and McDonald woods is difficult, but those are not under Trails’ purview. it was
suggested to approach KLT and the Conservation Commission. There are no signs for the Morril!
Road trail.

The library is planning a Trails-related event based on a children’s book about owls. Greg L. said
he would help Melissa the librarian with anything she needs.

Rob asked if we need to respond to some of the language in the Comp Plan. It was decided it
needs more detailed attention and the exact wording, so we will address it in a later meeting.




The Recreation Committee is hoping to proceed with the Fairgrounds project without using any
town money. Henry noted that even though the town voted down spending money on the
project there is doubt about whether the town will approve the project even without taxpayer
funds. Several people expressed opinions about the proposal. Henry suggested that Greg L.
share some of our thoughts with the Recreation Committee at their next meeting.

Rob attended the chairs meeting with the Selectboard and shared what the committee is doing,
including the volunteer hours we put in.

Next agenda will include the budget, the comp plan and Dana Therrien’s proposal. We
discussed meeting after Thanksgiving instead of the Wednesday before. Wednesday, Nov. 30,
was suggested as a possible date. Rob will verify by email.

Greg D. moved we adjourn; Nancy seconded. Adjourned at 8:26 p.m.

Minutes prepared and submitted by Holly Rahmlow




Comprehensive Planning Committee Minutes
August 17, 2022

Present: Jeffrey Carlson, Jessica Cobb (KVCOG), Eric Dyer, Jessica Gorton, Elaine Katz, Greg Leimbach,
Matt Nazar, Dennis Price, David Trunnell

Absent: Alanna Bachelder, Chris Cheney, Paula Clark, Henry Clauson

Jessica G. called the meeting to order at 6:04 p.m. in person at the Town Office and via Zoom.

MINUTES

Dennis moved to accept minutes from the July meeting. Jeff seconded. Unanimously approved.

NEW BUSINESS
Local Economy

Jessica G. and David presented their chapter on the Local Economy. David said he would like help
getting feedback from local businesses as to what help they might need. He’s spoken to a few, gotten
responses from some, who said they had no issues, but not others. The committee came up with a list
of those to talk to, and it was noted that the assessor would have a list and that there is also a list of
businesses on the website.

The committee discussed what questions the business owners should be asked. Greg suggested asking
them simply what the town could do to help their businesses and give them time to think about it,
then visit them again. Jessica G. noted that there are 200 businesses and the committee is running out
of time. Jeff asked if a sample of 10 to 15 businesses is adequate. It was noted that the businesses
differ widely and will have a variety of needs, but any feedback will provide the committee with some
information for setting goals. A group of the larger businesses was selected and different committee
members agreed to approach them.

The committee discussed the fact that the plan is rather lengthy and that progress needs to be made
quickly.

The goals and policies of the chapter were reviewed and edited.

David brought up the topic of economic development and the Enterprise Committee. He suggested
coordinating with chambers of commerce and groups such as the one in Winthrop.



OLD BUSINESS
Natural Resources

The committee began a final review of the chapter. David raised concern over the regulation of
pesticides and herbicides and their application near water bodies or schools. Jessica C. noted that it is
too specific for this plan, and while the town can regulate what’s applied to land it owns it has no
authority over private landowners. That is a state issue, and there are dozens of such chemicals. Jessica
G. said she could add some language on the topic to bring awareness of the issue to residents.

Agriculture and Forestry

Greg reviewed some possible goals and policies for encouraging sustainable agriculture and forestry
for the chapter, and the committee discussed them. Jessica C. had several questions that needed to be
answered. Greg noted that the maps need to be updated, which Jessica C. is working on. Greg said
once that is done and the goals and policies are complete, this chapter will be done.

Outdoor Recreation

Jeff and Greg reviewed recent updates to the chapter’s goals, which still need some more work. Jessica
C. is going to review the checklist, and Greg and Jeff will follow up with the involved committees. Elaine
asked if it would include other recreation, such as indoor activities like playing cards. Greg said it could
if she wanted to add it in, but the chapter needs to be done for next month.

Matt made a motion to move three chapters, Housing, Demographics and Historical and Architectural
to “complete.” Dennis seconded. All approved. Notes can be made on the chapters, but no additional
editing will be done until after public feedback.

NEXT MEETING/ACTION ITEMS

Elaine asked about the surveys and what the next step will be. Jessica G. said she would follow up with
Eric and put it on the agenda for the next meeting.

The next meeting will be Sept. 21.

Committee members will talk to local businesses for the Local Economy chapter.
Chapter leaders for sections reviewed tonight will follow up on the suggestions made.
Jessica C. will work on the maps for Agriculture and Forestry.

David moved the meeting be adjourned, Dennis seconded. Meeting adjourned at 7:57.

Minutes prepared and submitted by Holly Rahmlow



Recreation Committee Meeting Minutes — 09-15-2022

Approved

Attendees

e Mattl

e KevinkK

« Hannah F

o Jeff Carlson

s AmyT
Agenda

+ Soccer

o Status
»  Shirts are on order
= 235 players
= First practices
o What could we do better:
« pre-K/K: Saturday skills and scrimmages (40 minutes and 20 minutes)
Skills and drills weekend after labor day.
» Finalize teams weekend
« Coaches meeting - {training} {suggestions}
« Provide recommended (for practices and games rules).
Centralizing practice locations
Consider working parents when scheduling practicing times
Create a coaches kit (rules, suggestions, and recommendations)
Better field locations
Signs for field locations {(Kevin K to order)
+ Matt L to check with Karen and Travis M
Belgrade/Sydney/Oakland
« Nominate Dane Wing to connect with Jamie (jdionne56@gmail.com)

+ Halloween Event

o 10/29 saturday with rain out being 10/30
* Haunted dug out
» Trunk-r-treat - greg to drive
* Movie night - $295 for one movie permit(Casper, Monster house or Harry Potter and

the Sorcerer's stone)

» Hay Bales for seating?
» KevinkK

o Pumpkin-a-glow (library and union meeting house to organize)
*  Pumpkin carving(library 10-1pm on 10/29)
* 1-4 to set up the trails
*  Vote for the best pumpkin?

« Youth Ice Fishing Derby
o March 5, 2023
o Start canvasing for donations.
o Tent for readfield rec for concessions. Banner



APPOINTMENTS,
REAPPOINTMENTS, &
RESIGNATIONS




Readfield Select Board
December 12, 2022
Item # 23-058

TOWN OF READFIELD

8 OLD KENTS HiLL RD. ®* READFIELD, MAINE 04355
TEL. (207) 685-4939 e Fax (207) 685-3420

Office of Registrar
Certificate of Appointment

{Municipal Officers are required to appoint a registrar by January 1% of each odd numbered year)

To: Kristin Parks

Pursuant to 21-A M.R.S.A. 55101.2 I, the undersigned Board of Selectmen of the municipality of Readfield, do
hereby appoint you as Registrar.

Your term of office is to expire on January 1, 2025,

Given under our hands on this: December 12, 2022

Carol Doorenbos Steven DeAngelis Dennis Price

Sean Keegan Kathryn Mills Woodsum

Oath of Office
Municipality of Readfield, Maine

December 12, 2022

I, Kristin Parks, do swear, that I will support the Constitution of the United States, and of this State, so long as
I shall continue a citizen thereof. (Constitution of Maine, Art. IX, Sec.1.)

I, Kristin Parks, do swear, that I will faithfully discharge, to the best of my abilities, the duties incumbent on
me as Registrar of Readfield according to the Constitution and the law of the State.

Kristin Parks

State of Maine
County of Kennebec, ss December , 2022

Personally appeared before me the above-named Kristin Parks, who has been duly appointed as the Readfield
Registrar in said municipality and took the oath necessary to qualify for office and perform the duties thereof.

Before me,

, Deputy Clerk



NEW BUSINESS




Readfield Select Board
December 12, 2022

Town of Readfield, Maine ltem # 23-059

Reserve Policy Index

Special Revenues, Capital Projects and Permanent Funds

Special Revenue Funds -

Age Friendly . SR - 402
ARPA SR - 404
Code Officer . -' SR - 406
Conservoﬁon Lond' SR - 407
Dog Yaccine Fund ' o SR - 409
Enterprise Fund SR-410
Grant Writing . - SR-413
Heating Assistance | SR-415
legal - ~_ SR-418
Library SR-419
Local Tax Relief SR~ 420
Open Space SR - 430
Readfield Corner Sewage - SR-436
Recreation SR - 438
Revaluation - SR-440
Trails | o SR - 444
Transfer Station — Interlocal : . SR-470
Capital Project Funds - _

Capital Equipmén’r - Leases CP - 460
Capital Equipment . CP-461.
Equipment Replacement Admin/Tech CP - 463
Fire Depariment Reserve . CP - 464
Roads Capital Reserve CP - 465
Sidewalk Capital Project : L CP - 466
Town Building Reserve CP - 467

Town of Readfield Policy Index




Town of Readfield, Maine

Reserve Policy Index

Special Revenues, Capital Projects and Permanent Funds

Capital Project Funds (continued) -

Town Property Reserve

Transfer S’roﬂon'Copiiol

Permanent Funds -

Perpetual Care Fund

Whittier Fund
Kents Hilt Fun

Cemetery Expansion Fund

Kesner Fund
Kolreg Fund
Lincoln Fund
Walker Fund
Townsend Fund

Couture Fund

Beach Improvement Fund

Town of Readfield Policy Index

CP - 468
CP - 470

P - 420
P— 423
P — 426
P- 429

P-432

P — 435
P- 438
P — 441
P - 439
P — 440
P - 453




Policy: SR — 402

Age Friendly Reserve Fund Policy

Town of Readfield, Maine
Approved by the Select Board XX/XX/XXXX

Purpose:

The Town of Readfield, Maine's, Age Friendly Reserve, has been
established 1o help meet the needs and engage the strengths of all
citizens to reach the goal of building a community for all ages. These
inifiatives include (but are not limited to) recreational and educational
activities and services, special projects, and events.

Funding:

The primary funding of the Age Friendly Reserve will be through
applicable grant proceeds and Town raised funds.

Process.

The Town Select Board shall appoint the members of the Age Friendly
Committee to function as advisors to the Select Board in the Age Friendly
initiative as reflected in the Town's “Board, Committee and Commission
(BCC) Guide.” The Committee shall request permission to apply for grants
pertaining to the age friendly initiative as reflected in the Town's “Grant
Policy 7/21/2003.” The Age Friendly Committee shall propose appropriate
utilization of funds and must get approval from the Select Board before
appropriating and expending the reserve funds. All Age Friendly revenues
and expenditures must be recorded in the Town's Age Friendly Special
Revenue Fund as established. No Age Friendly revenues or expenses
should be recorded in the Town's operating fund, unless to reflect Town
raised funds transferred into the Age Friendly reserve as approved.

Attachments:

o SR-402a: Approved meeting minutes
o SR-402b: Annual review sign-off sheet

o SR-402c¢: Copies of approved revisions to policy {remove if no approved

revisions})

Policy: SR — 402




Policy: SR - 406

Code Enforcement Officer Interlocal Fund Policy
Town of Readfield, Maine
Approved by the Select Board XX/XX/XXXX

Purpose:

The Town of Readfield, Maine's Code Enforcement Officer

{CEQ) Interlocal Fund is established to reflect the interlocal revenues and
expenses of the shared Code Enforcement Officer / Local Plumbing
inspector between the Town of Readfield and the Town of Wayne.

Funding:

The CEO Interlocal fund is to be funded through the annual appropriation
of the Town of Readfield for their budgeted share of annual CEO
expenditures and through the monthly revenue received from the Town of
Wayne for their portion of total annual compensation and benefits paid

by Readfield to the CEO as detailed in the "CEO-LPI Interlocal
Agreement.”

Process:

The Town of Readfield is to maintain all agreements and amendments to
the interlocal agreement. The Town shall annually transfer their budgeted
and raised share of CEQ/LPI cost from the General Fund into the CEO
Interlocal Fund. All compensation, benefits and any other misc. expenses
(as noted in the “CEO-LPI Interfocal Agreement” must be reflected within
the CEO interlocal reserve. The Town will invoice Wayne, on an
approximately monthly basis for their share of annual cost and any
additional direct and indirect costs attributable to the CEOQ-LPL. The Town
shall record all revenue received from Wayne in the CEO Interlocal Fund.
Any overages or underfunded CEO-LPI costs for the year will carry info the
reserve fund balance and be used as part of the annual budgeting
process to ensure effective and efficient fee structures are implemented.

AHtachments:

o SR-406a: Approved meeting minutes

Policy: SR-406




Policy: SR - 406

o R-406b: Annual review sign-off sheet

o R-406c: Copies of approved revisions to policy {remove if no approved

revisions)

Policy: SR-406




Policy: SR - 418

Legal Reserve Fund Policy

Town of Readfield, Maine
Approved by the Select Board XX/XX/XXXX

Purpose:

The Town of Readfield, Maine's Legal Reserve Fund is established to aid in
funding for any unforeseen or unbudgeted legal fees that may arise.

Funding:

This Legal Fund is to be funded mainly through budgeted town
contributions. The beginning balance of this reserve was funded by
previous years unspent operating legal expenses as approved by the
Town. Upon approval date of this policy, unspent operating legal cost will
lapse into general fund undesignated funds unless otherwise approved by
the Town. Future confributions may be budgeted to aid in the

continuance of the reserve upon approval in the Annual Town Warrant if
deemed necessary.

Process:

The Legal Reserve Fund is to be used only in the event of unforeseen
excess legal costs arising in any given year. All operational and normail
legal expenditures are 1o be spent in the general operating fund where
they are budgeted. The fund balance of the Legal Reserve will be
reviewed periodically and in conjunction with the budget process to
ensure that there is a sufficient amount of funds available in the reserve to
protect the fown from unbudgeted legal costs.

Attachments:

o $SR-418a: Approved meeting minutes

o $R-418b: Annual review sign-off sheet

Policy: SR - 418




Policy: SR - 418

o SR -418c: Copies of approved revisions to policy (remove if no approved

revisions)

Policy: SR - 418




General Ledger Summary Report

Fund(s): ALL LEGEND
Town of Readfield, Maine REMOVE
NEW
ADJUSTMENTS
Fund Account Notes
1 - GENERAL FUND
Assets
G1- 110-00 CASH
G1- 111-00 Credit Card Pending
G1- 112-00 ARPA Remove should be fund 5
G1- 113-00 MMBB 2021B
G1- 120-00 PETTY CASH
G1- 122-00 PETTY CASH - TRANSFER STATION
G1- 130-00 CASHBOX
G1- 144-00 Androscoggin Fire Truck Bond
G1- 145-00 Androscoggin Cdars
G1- 1446-00 Investment Androscoggin Bank
G1- 147-00 INVESTMENT - KENNEBEC SAVINGS
G1- 148-00 INVESTMENT WINTHROP AREA FCU
G1- 149-00 INVESTMENT Bank of America
G1- 150-00 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
G1- 150-01 Accts Rec'vble School
G1- 152-00 PREPAID EXPENSES
G1- 155-00 DUE FROM TRUST FUND
G1- 157-00 DUE FROM SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
G1- 159-00 Due From Capital Projects
G1- 160-00 TAX ACQUIRED PROPERTY
G1- 170-00 PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX 2000-01
G1- 170-01 PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX 2001-02
G1- 170-02 PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX 2002-03
G1- 170-03 PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX 2003-04
G1- 170-04 PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX 2004-05
G1- 170-05 Personal Property Tax 2005-06
G1- 170-06 Personal Property Tax 2006-07
G1- 170-07 Personal Property Tax 2007-08
G1- 170-08 Personal Property Tax 2008-09
G1- 170-09 Personal Property Tax 2009-10
G1- 170-10 Personal Property Tax 2010-11
G1- 170-11 Personal Property Tax 2011-12
G1- 170-12 Personal Property Tax 2012-13
G1- 170-13 Personal Property Tax 2013-14
G1- 170-14 Personal Property Tax 2014-15
G1- 170-15 Personal Properly Tax 2015-16
G1- 170-16 Personal Property Tax 2016-17
G1- 170-17 Personal Property Tax 2017-18
G1- 170-18 Personal Properly Tax 2018-19
G1- 170-12 Personal Property Tax 2019-20
G1- 170-20 Personal Property Tax 2020-21
G1- 170-21 Personal Properly Tax 2021-22
G1- 170-22 Personal Property Tax 2022-23
G1- 170-99 PERSONAL PROPERTY 199%-00
G1- 180-00 REAL ESTATE TAX 2000-01
G1- 180-01 REAL ESTATE TAX 2001-02
G1- 180-02 REAL ESTATE TAX 2002-03
G1- 180-03 REAL ESTATE TAX 2003-04
G1- 180-04 REAL ESTATE TAX 2004-05
G1- 180-05 Real Estate Tax 2005-06
G1- 180-06 Real Estate Tax 2006-07



G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-

G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-
G1-

Gl-
Gl-

180-07
180-08
180-09
180-10
180-11
180-12
180-13
180-14
180-15
180-16
180-17
180-18
180-19
180-20
180-21
180-22
180-33
180-94
180-95
180-96
180-97
180-99
190-00
190-14
Liabilities
310-00
310-01
311-00
320-00
323-00
325-00
330-00
331-00
333-00
336-00
339-00
342-00
345-00
346-00
360-00
380-00
383-00
386-00
388-00
389-00
390-00
391-00
392-00
393-00
395-00
396-00
396-01
397-00
398-00
399-00
399-01
399-02

Real Estate Tax 2007-08
Real Estate Tax 2008-09
Real Estate Tax 2009-10
Real Estate Tax 2010-11
Real Estate Tax 2011-12
Real Estate Tax 2012-13
Real Estate Tax 2013-14
Real Estate Tax 2014-15
Real Estate Tax 2015-16
Real Estate Tax 2016-17
Real Estate Tax 2017-18
Real Estate Tax 2018-19
Real Estate Tax 2019-20
Real Estate Tax 2020-21
Real Estate Tax 2021-22
Real Estate Tax 2022-23
UNKNOWN

REAL ESTATE TAX 1994-95
REAL ESTATE TAX 1995-96
Real estate Tax 1996-97
REAL ESTATE TAX 1997-98
REAL ESTATE TAX 1999-00
Allowance for Doubtful Account
Real Estate Lien 2014

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Other Liabilities

EOY Accounts Payable

DUE TO TRUST FUND

DUETO SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
Due to Enterprise Fund

Motor Vehicle Fees

ME.Vital Records Fees

Dont use see336

Recreation Vehicle Fees

Do Not use

Dog Fees State

PLUMBING FEES - STATE SHARE
Plumbing Fees - DEP Surcharge
Do Not Use

FEDERAL INCOME TAX

STATE INCOME TAX

SOCIAL SECURITY
VOLUNTARY DEDUCTIONS
MEDICARE

Aflac

Income Protection Plan
Health Insurance

Retirement - John Hancock
Union Dues

ICMA DEDUCTION WITHHELD
Dependent Care Deductions
VSP Vision Plan

Real Estate Payments
Accrued Liabilities

Accrued Payroll

Unavcilable Property Tax

Fund Balance

405-00
410-00

DEFERRED PROPERTY TAXES
Heating Assistance

REMOVE
REMOVE



MOVE




2 - TRUST FUND
Assets
G2- 140-00 INVESTMENTS

50-00

Liabilities

Fund Balance

AVAILABLE - CEMETERIES Expense

\l {=1

AVAILABLE - WHITTIER CEM. CEMETERY
AVAILABLE - KENTS HILL CEMETERY
AVAIL-CEMETERY Expan Rev CEMETERY
AVAIL-Cemetery Expansion REMOVI

AVAILABLE - KESNER CEMETERY

AVAILABLE - KOLREG CEMETERY
AVAILABLE - LINCOLN-MORSE CEMETERY
AVAILABLE -TOWNSEND/ADELL CEMETERY
AVAILABLE - ALICE COUTURE CEMETERY
G2- 441-00 AVAILABLE - MINNIE WALKER CEMETERY

G2- AVAILABLE - GOVERNOR HUNTOON CEMETERY

REMOVE
BEACH

AVAILABLE - MINISTERIAL
AVAILABLE - BEACH

G2- PRINCIPAL - CEMETERIES

G2- 463-00 PRINCIPAL - WHITTIER

G2- 466-00 PRINCIPAL - KENTS HILL

G2- 467-00 PRINCIPAL - TOWNSEND/ADELL
G2- 468-00 PRINCIPAL - ALICE COUTURE
G2- 469-00 PRINCIPAL - MINNIE WALKER
G2- 470-00 PRINCIPAL - GOVERNOR HUNTOON
G2- 472-00 PRINCIPAL - KESNER

G2- 475-00 PRINCIPAL - KOLREG

G2- 478-00 PRINCIPAL - LINCOLN-MORSE
G2- 481-00 PRINCIPAL - WAR MEMORIAL
G2- 484-00 PRINCIPAL - LEON TEBBETS
G2- 487-00 PRINCIPAL - MINISTERIAL

G2- 488-00 Principal - Beach Improvement




G3- 154-00 Vehicles
G3- 154-01 Accum Depr Vehicles

G3- 156-00 EQUIPMENT

G3- 156-01 Accum Depr Equipment

G3- 157-00 Infrastructure

G3- 157-01 Accum Depr Infrastructure
Liabilities

Fund Balance
G3- 525-00 INVESTMENT IN FIXED ASSETS
G3- 530-00 FUND BALANCE

4 - LONG TERM DEBT

Assets NOT BEING USED CURRENTLY
G4- 160-00 AMOUNT TO BE PROVIDED

Liabilities
G4- 299-00 Accrued Interest

G4 - Readfield-2022

G4- 300-00 Curr Portion

G4- 310-00 Capital Lease- Curr Portion
G4- 353-00 SAND SHED/SOLID WASTE BOND
G4- 357-00 '16 Fire Truck

G4- 358-00 '08 Road Bond

G4- 359-00 FIRE TRUCK

G4- 360-00 13 Road Bnd

G4- 362-00 GILES HALL RENOVATION

G4- 363-00 Capital Lease Payable

G4- 364-00 '18 Maranacook Dam Bnd
G4- 365-00 LEASE PURCHASE - T.S. EQUIP
G4- 370-00 Current Portion Adj

G4- 380-00 Capital Lease- Curr Portion Ad
Fund Balance
G4- 530-00 FUND BALANCE

5 - SPECIAL REVENUE
Assets
~ 110-00' CASH - ARPA' Should fefiectARPA ca "
G5- IH!}i-ﬁ)mll FROM GENERALFUND Need to see ifthis fs a working '-)i“l;(crunﬂ(-ikt-rumarm! e it fis R
G5- 151-00 Enterprise Receivables This will be the balance of locns owed to the Town. When funds qre recewed from the pcriles, credn 1his accet

Liabilities
GS5- 32000 DUETO GENERALFUND = Remove - only need one DIDF control account per fund.

Fund Balance

~ 510-00' EXPENDITUR
520-00 REVENUE Ct
G5- 430-00 TOWN BOUNB" YLINES : SR i
GS5- 433-00 WATER HOLES R it REMOVE

CONTROL

Need fo'sef up revenues ses for FUND !

G5- 44200 FREEQUIPMENT = : REMOVE
GS§-  448-00 BEACHTRACTORREPLACEMENT  REMOVE
G5-  451-00 BEACHEQUIPMENT REMOVE

G5- 45400 OPENSPACE e REMOVES
G5- 45700 FireTruckBond2016 ~ REMOVE
GS§- 402-00 AGE FRIENDLY

G5- 404-00 ARPA

G5- 405-00 Cemetery.

G5- 406-00 CEOQ Interlocal

G5- 407-00 Conservation

G5- 409-00 Dog Vaccination Assistance

G5- 410-00 Enterprise Fund

G5- 413-00 Grant Writing Reserve

G5- 415-00 Heating Assistance




G5-  434-00 READFIELD CORNER SEWAGE keep

'EXPENDITUR
-00 REVENUE CONTI




Readfield Select Board
December 12, 2022

Road Work Schedule Item # 23-060
Surface Llength Width Shoulder ROW  Last Next
Road Name Type (miles} (feet) (feet) {rods)* CapEx CostEst. Cycle CapEx CostEst. FY
Lane Rd Paved 0.67 23 2 3 2012| $ 95,050.89 12 2024
Morrill Rd Paved 0.25 19 0 3 2009| 5 29,757.75 15 2024] $124,80864 | 24
Beaver Dam Rd Paved 0.96 20 2 3 2013| $119,750.40 12 2025
N Wayne Rd Paved 0.75 22 2 3 2013| $102,118.50 12 2025
Sadie Dunn Rd Paved 0.14 22 2 4 2013| $ 19,062.12 12 2025
Tallwood Dr Paved 0.41 16 1 3 2013| 5 41,780.64 12 2025
Thundercastle Rd |Paved 0.46 22 1 3 2013| $ 62,632.68 12 2025 $345,344.34 | 25
Chase Rd Paved 0.45 22 2 3 2014| $ 61,271.10 12 2026
Chase Rd Paved 0.27 22 2 3 2014| 5 36,762.66 12 2026
Chase Rd Paved 0.33 22 2 3 2014| 5 44,932.14 12 2026
Mooer Rd Paved 0.22 18 2 3 2014| S 24,930.84 12 2026
Old Kents HillRd  |Paved 0.82 24 2 4 2014| 5121,012.32 12 2026
Old Kents Hill Rd  |Paved 0.5 22 2 4 2014) 5 68,079.00 12 2026| $356,988.06 | 26
Balsam Dr Paved 0.36 20 2 60* 2012 $ 44,906.40 15 2027
Nickerson Hill Rd  |Paved 1.14 20 1 3 2015 5142,203.60 12 2027
Wings Mills Rd Paved 0.61 20 2 3 2015] S 76,091.40 12 2027| $263,201.40 | 27
Fogg Rd Paved 0.49 22 2 3 2013] § 66,717.42 15 2028
Fogg Rd Paved 0.69 22 2 3 2013| 5 93,949.02 15 2028
Memarial Dr Paved 0.22 22 2 4 2016| 5 29,954.76 12 2028
P Ridge Rd Paved 1.04 22 2 3 2016) $141,604.32 12 2028
Scribner Hill Rd Paved 0.79 21 2 4 2016} $103,054.71 12 2028
Thundercastle Rd |Paved 0.65 21 2 3 2016| S 84,791.85 12 2028| $520,072.08 | 28
Adell Rd Paved 0.25 16 1 4 2016| $ 25,476.00 15 2031
Harmony Hills Rd  |Paved 0.33 20 2 3 2016| 5 41,164.20 15 2031
Lakeview Dr Paved 0.33 16 1 3 2016| 5 33,628.32 15 2031
Russell S5t Paved 0.35 22 2 4 2016| S 47,655.30 15 2031
South Rd Paved 1.07 23 2 3 2019| $151,797.69 12 2031
South Rd Paved 0.59 23 2 3 2019| 5 83,701.53 12 2031| $383,423.04 | 31
Church Rd Paved 1.11 22 2 4 2022| $151,135.38 10 2032
Church Rd Paved 0.68 24 2 4 2022| $100,351.68 10 2032
Church Rd Paved 0.35 24 2 4 2022| 5 51,651.60 10 2032| $303,138.66 | 32
Luce Rd Gravel 1.83 20 2 3 2018| $199,287.00 15 2033
Plains Rd Paved 0.62 21 2 4 2021| § 80,878.38 12 2033
Plains Rd Paved 1.18 21 2 4 2021| 5153,929.82 12 2033
Plains Rd Paved 138 21 2 4 2021| S 180,019.,62 12 2033
Sturtevant Hill Rd [Paved 0.77 22 2 4 2021| $104,841.66 12 2033
Sturtevant Hill Rd [Paved 0.45 22 2 4 2021| 5 61,271.10 12 2033
Sturtevant Hill Rd |Paved 1 22 2 4 2021| $ 136,158.00 12 2033
Sturtevant Hill Rd |Paved 0.29 22 2 4 2021| § 39,485.82 12 2033| $955,871.40 | 33
Giles Rd Paved 0.17 24 2 3 2019| 5 25,087.92 15 2034
Giles Rd Paved 0.06 24 2 3 2019| 5 8,854.56 15 2034
Ratt Mill Hill Rd Gravel 0.35 18 2 4 2019] $ 35,042.70 15 2034] $ 68,985.18 | 34
P Ridge Rd Gravel 0.06 22 2 3 2016| S 7,060.68 20 2036 $  7,060.68 | 36
Gay Rd Gravel 0.53 20 2 4 2018| § 57,717.00 20 2038] 5 57,717.00| 38
Huntoon Rd Gravel 0.46 22 2 3 2019 $ 54,131.88 20 2039
Mckenney Rd Gravel 0.1% 18 1 3 2019( 5 15,018.30 20 2039
Mill Stream Rd Gravel 0.16 16 0 3 2019| $ 14,615.04 20 2039
Walker Rd Gravel 0.7 24 2 3 2019| $ 88,519.20 20 2039| $172,284.42 ) 39
Belz Rd Gravel 0.12 18 2 2 2020| $ 12,014.64 20 2040
Hunts Lnh Gravel 0.12 18 1 3 2020( $ 12,014.64 20 2040
Tallwood Dr Gravel 0.2 16 1 3 2020| & 18,268.80 20 2040| S 42,298.08 | 40
MILEAGE COST
Total 27.88 $ 3,601,193 Total
Paved 23.85 $272,153.79 Annualized

Gravel 4.03




. - - E : 000°ST €20T [0 |g£z0T plIng [eH SIUOSEJAL JO JUOLJ UI) SUDIE JOUIOD) P[AIJPERY| 2INJONISELU] PUB SPRoYy

s = . = - 000°S¥ 0 R pring M[EMIPIS “PY YoInyD| SINJONISELU] PUB SPEOY

- 000°SLT | 000°SLT 000°5LZ | 000°SLT 3 0 0 [0 aaedoy ([enuuy) SuiAeJ SOUBURJUIEJA][ SINJONIISEIU] PUE SPEOY
000°0S8

. = . 000°0S = 000°0S §70T [0S |sSL61 soe[doy (pajeunsa ajep p[ing) Suip[ing yoeag| SIMIAINY 7 Sy “0Y

- “ - 000°ST = 000°5T ST0T |0 - |seoe prng 12)[aYS AJAIOY / d1Udld dnoin) yorag | SINIAINDY 3 SYIEd oY

E B - 2 : 000°S or0z |0 [or0T soe|day SQINJONIS JIUDLJ YdBF| SIBIANOY 2P SHIBJ "0y

000°0S | 000°0S | 000°0S 000°0S | 000°0S = 0 o 1 dAISSY aAzesy doedg uad|  seniAnOY 29 SIEd oY

- - - = : 000°S oz |sT [L10T aoe[day SuIp[ing] 35BI0}S SPUNOISIIE,]| SINIANDY 79 SHIBJ “ONY

- - 000°0SL 000°0SL  |PT0T [0  |tTOT ping|  (uorsuedxg p[or.]) SP[RL] IRy SPUNOIGIIR]| SINIALDY 79 SHIEJ O3y

- i g - : 000°S1 0z |sz [L10T aoe[doy| (smoBn(] 79 20U,) SPIAL] A1A|Y1Y SPUNOISIE| SIIANDY 29 SHIBJ “ONY
0007TT

- - - s - 000°01 ceoz loz |croT ooe|doy I0JBIOUDD) [[BH (1D uonjensIuIpy

- i = = : 000°S 0€0Z |00Z [0€81 Ireday][1s00 JO 7/[ “djIueId J0sal) [[em SurtIe}dy [[EH 2[1D uonensIuIupy

- - ~ - : 000°01 0zoz |0 |ozoz [ressuy sjuawA0Idw] AJIQISSAIIY [[eH (1D uonensIuIpy

- . 000°ST - : 000°ST 9Z0Z |0T [900T aaeday 107 SuBjIEd [[EH 9[ID UOHELSIUIUPY

000°0T - " - s 000°0T 820 |0€ |8661 soejdoy wajsAs andeg [[eH (1D uoneSIUIPY

- 8 2 E : 000°0$ 8407 [0S [8661 soejday Jooy [[eH 2[1D UOHENSIUTWPY

5 2 - 000°0S : 000°0S szoz [s¢  |oe6l soejday SMOpUIA [[BH 2[1D UOnBLSIUIIPY

. p . = : 000°01 zZoz |0 |eaee ERECEN| sdumg 189y 100[ PuZ [[eH 2[1D uonensIuIupy

2 000°$2 - : : 000°ST Lz0Z |og |[Le6l ERETCEN DVAH / Ja[1og [[eH 2[1D uonELSIUIWPY

- . - ¢ 000°01 000°01 0 o= 2l OAISY 9A1SY [[BH 2[1D UONELSIUIWPY

- - i - = 000°6 €z0z |0 |gzoz soe[doy uonel§ DIJ / YodL “IoJuf / 'Wwo)) [eN3I] uonenSIUIUpPY

= = = S = - O o 0 [reisug JUDUNSOAU] \ﬂwbcm Q_n_.w__SuE@N_ EOSNEEEE@<
000°12T

- = - = - 000°01 [£0T [ST |900T ooe[day] sorUULIN [I0) ATeIqL] Areaqry

= . . = E 000°S1 6£0T |0z |[610T ERHGEN sdung jeap Areiqr Areaqry

- - 2 3 E 000°02 ze0z [sT [Looz soe[day smopui gy Jurp[ing Areiqig Areiqry

- - = : 000°0¢ Ve | vt |10 [ord 17 prng J100[J pug 2p SS2ISY SuIp[Ing ATeIqi] Areiqry

- i - - E 000°S1 czoz. o |ezoz oAB] 107 SubjIed Sulping Areiqi] Areaqry

5 - - 5 = 0009 1€0Z ST {9002 EREIGEN plaLg / yue] dudeg Surpjing Areiqry AreIqry

000°S 000°S 000°S 000°S 000°S 000°S 0 0 Jo SA10SY (Jenuuy) aA10say Julp[ing Areiqry AreIqIg
00S‘Z¥1

000°S 000°S 000°S 000°S 000°S 000°S 0 o | SAISSY (Jenuuy) 9A1259Y SaLR)AWRD)

- - B = = OGGnOm— O O O .H.:wnum mE@S oﬁcm.uw oSE)) Uz.m JRULIOD) U_v_:tuwod. mDEBQEOU

2 > = = : 00S°L 0 Dicai pring peoy A1RjoWR)) p[oLpedy sey SOLIDRWR)

8707 LT0T 9707 §T0T ¥202 MaN 150D  [doy AT aeax uondy paaN / 1aloayg yaunaedaq

g 159

U0ZIIOH JeaA-G - Alewwing Buluueld jepden pZAd




= » E - s 000°ST $soz [0S [s00T ooe[day Jooy jusunedaq 24ty
= - - - = 000002 |Zzoz [0  [ZToT pring wa)sAS opuLdg usmreda( a1t
- - - - - 000°S 6707 |0S |6L61 Iedoyg ([9A®I3 79 s1aLIeq A9sS1al) [[BMm SuTuIRIY juaueda 241
- - - = - 000°00S  |0L0T [0S |0TOT pimg uoisuedxy urp[mg Jusunedady 241,
000°0S | 000°0S | 000°0S 000°0S | 000°0T . 0 Pt QALRSY (9A19s0y]) Judwdinby -osIjA juawrpeda( 211
- . . - : 000°01 $zo0T |01 |S10T aoejday BISLUE)) SULTEW] [BULIAY | jusurpeda(g eurg
= = - = G ooopm_” CE0T 0c <10¢ vom_n_om I9[Iel] Iojue)) puelIllo)) ED_.E.EQOQ A
" 5 e A = 000°S1 620 |[S1 [vI0T Qoeday ALV Juowedad a1t
000°S1 - = - = 000°S1 820T (0T |800T ooeyday Jeog NSy jusureda(y 211
000°0¥ - . . : 000°0% 820 (01 ([810T aoefday s1ajeaday] / juswdinby oipey] yusureda a |
- - = & z 000°00¢ [s¥0z |og [810T aoeday|  (9661) JeuIpysial] “1exue) sedumd ‘49 sursug Juounredacy a1
- - - - z 000°00C |PE0T |0€ |¥0OT aoe[day |97 Aj4ouLIO}) 0SS.] pio,] Jodwnd rutw ‘g sursuy juswredaq 211
- = = v = 000°sTy  |9¥0T |0€ |910T aoe[day] Tadwnd *¢g sursuy juduedacy 211,
- - 3 - : 000°6TT  |ov0Z [0€ |010T soe[day] anosal AAeay 79 duIsug jusunedaq 241
- - 000°00S - - 000°00S 9z0Z o 9702 oorjday mau - Jodumd ‘[9-oumSuyg jusutedac ali]
000°889
- - - - - 0009 6£0Z [0 [610T pIng ylo0g Juepualy uonelg JIaysuel],
7 7 = - = 000°01 hoT [0S |ze6l soe[day yue ], ondeg UONE)S JJSUeIL],
- 000°01 - 3 = 000°01 LT0T [SE€ |Z661 soe[dey] Jooy Surp[ing sig Uone)S Jajsuel],
= 000°Z1 ~ g = 000°T1 LT0T [SE  |Z661 soe[dey DV AH / ie[iog suipyig sig uonel§ IAJSuel],
- . - = = 000°SL Th0T [0S |T661 soe[doy|  (woolyieq / yeaq / doys-dems) surpjing sig uone)s Jejsuel]
= 5 & - = 000°52T voT [0S |T661 ooe[day] sTuIp[INg AI0SS200Y 29 BuIp[ing J0joedwo)) A[1I] uone)s Joysuel],
= - - 5 : 00002 1€0Z (ST [910T aaeday 10T SunpIed UOnE)§ Jojsuel],
- - = = = OOOPON mNON m~ wOON ®>NQ®M QOOJ mmvoo< Eo_um“_m hm_mmcmpr_l
- = = " : 000°5T 10z |21 6102 oArdoy pEOY $5900Y MAN uone)S Jojsuel],
- - 000°05T 3 z 000°0sz  [9z0Z [0  |920T pring wa)sAS Jooy YSS / MSIN Uone)S J9JSueL],
= g = : G8ITI 000011  |0¥0T [0T |0T0T aoe[day ASVAT 20yped dIf 6102 UONEIS JAJSUEL],
- - - 000°ST z 000°ST ST0Z |ST |000T soe[doy (¥ umo) s1aurejuod pApy 3jo-[|0y doj-uadp UOLe)S J9JSuelL],
= # 000°0$ 5 = 000°0S 9707 L1 |600T soeday lojordwio)) BUI[OAdY uone)S JoJsuel],
- - - 819°8 819°8 000°0¢ 8¢0Z L1 [120T aoefdey gSvaT Hopedwo) (ysen) M SN UOIIRIS J9JSUBL],
- 000°ST | 000°ST 000°5T | 000°sT 000°0T 0 0 [0 2A1053Y | (3o8png suonerad() Jo 940 1) dAIISIY UMO [-I[NA UoIje}S I9JSuel],
000009
- - - & = OOOAOA: 00T 0C 0c0cC .:NQDM :O_Hozbmcoomm wedq HQESO Mooowcmhm_\/_ @.:Sus.ﬁmm.cc_ m..:.:.u. m@mow_
= - " 5 : 000°0T 9¢0Z [0 [910T Ireday MOA[MD Xog [[IH SIUSY P[O| SINJONUSELU pue Speoy
= = = = - Ooonmh :uom ON ~NON .H.EQOM mehm— wCOn— %ompOP u._:uo:bmm.mﬂ_ ﬁcm mﬁmow_
- - 000°5T1 - = 000521 |9z0z |0  [9z0T SAOWY |98pLIq "pad /am oe[dal 79 OWp - 3FPLIG "PY SIID| dINPPNIISLIU] PUE SPEOY
000°01 - > = : 000°01 820 |0Z [800T Ireday Ped pPaABd (P[0) PAYS PUES/A[ES| 2MIONISELU] PUB SPEOY
S = = = = Ooonom — MNON Fm Nm®~ o?ﬁmvm COEU:.—umCOU ..sz - ﬂ@ﬁm UCmm\.:mm mpﬂuuj.mmm._,._2~ ﬁcm mﬁmom
= = o = = OOO.‘.MN MNON O mNON Quﬁ—awm m@.—EXE Mau nMv :O_m.uo>:0n. D@J i muﬁm:umubm muzwoaummﬁcﬁ ﬁc,m m—umox
g 5 ) - 2 000°ST €zoT [0 [gzoT ping UOT)O3SIRIU] [[[IH UOSIDIN Pue 25pry-d| SINIONISLIIU] PUL SPeoy]
8707 LT0T 97202 €707 ¥70T MIN 150D  [doyy WT awax uondy paaN /193loag yuawpaeda(q

15

15H




Aqreatporiad pajepdn aue sarewnse Aouridadxa 91

_ 000°S0€ | 000°TLY _ 000°€8E°T _ S6LT09 _ 086°9LT°I _ S2TBLUIISD 1509 JULIND Judsaadai 03 Afjedrporiad pajepdn a1 sainJiy 1500
000F€T

5 B - 000°G1 = 000°S1 ST0T (0T |[S10T soe[day JOMOJA WINJ, 01277 alaa( uyor SOUBURJUTEIA]

000701 = = = = 000°01 820C |00l |810C 2oe[day JURWITDBNY JOMOTA] 2199(J uyor QOUBUIJUIBIA

- B . 3 = 000°SS TE0T |ST [LOOT ooe[day 1030E4 21221 uyor L00T SOUBUIJUIBIA]

~ - - - - 000°0S €€0C (ST |810T soefday] HSVHT siusuwoene 7 18dqog 810T QoUBLJUIBIA

B - § = 0009 0009 ¥Z0T |8 910¢T aoe[deay Spues SDUBUSJUIBIA

B = 000°8 = = 000°8 920 |01 |910T soe[doy MO[] SOUEURJUIE]A]

000°09 - ¥ - = 00009 8C0T |[TI |910T soe[day dSVHT 0S54 P10 9102 SOUEBURUIEIN

- = = LLT9 LLT9 000°0€ £e0C |T1 120T soe[day ISVAT ony dnydid piod 0Z0T SOUBURIUIE[A

000°S1 | 000°S1 | 000°S1 000°ST | 000°ST 3 0 gl IAIRSY (an1asay)) Juawdmbsy osTy SOUBUIUIBIA]
000°0Z¥°T

- B - 7 = 00002 0€0T (ST [S00T oor[day] protyg ondag jusuredacg aaiyg

000°5T g n i 7 000°ST 8C0C |SI [€10T oAeday 107 Sunjreq usunredacy a1y

870¢ LT0T 970t ST0T yaoc MINIs0D)  pdoy MWT aeojx uony pasaN / 19aloayg juauaeda(g

5d R |




Readfield Select Board
December 12, 2022
Item # 23-061

Town of Readfield

Emergency Operations Plan

December 12, 2022

12-10-2022
Page 1




1. ScOPe aNnd ACCEPLANCE c..coiuiiiiiiiiieecci it e e sre s ear et s eas st s saa st e s eenens 4

2. ReVISION SHEET ..ciiiiiiiiiiiiirs ettt e eb bt e e enerrereans 5
3. Recovery FIOWCRAIT.......cccoiiiiieiiieeeece ettt 6
4. Readfield’s Emergency Organization and RESPONSE......cccocvvvvvverievevrreenesiceseeecieenns 7
4.1 SeleCt Board: ..o e 7
4.2 Emergency Management DIreCtor .......ccovvvvvereiiviiciesceeceeees e, 8
4.3 TOWI MANAEET ...t iieeiriiteeeeie ettt tess et ees et et re s e s ereeassassasatertante s enes 9

5. EMErgency SUPPOIT......cccvceiiirieerieeseiesieiess e seeeesees et eve st eas e stessebess st eeenerenes 11
5.1 Emergency Operations Center (EOC) ....oovooivviciioviiieceieieeeeeeeer 11
3.1 Town Maintenance. ........ooiviinenieieneieretiteets et eebe b e et 11
5.12 Town Office Administrative Staff ..o i1
5.1.3 TOWIN MaNager .....cooiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt Il

52 Communications Among Emergency Agencies......cocovviivevvveveciincsvceeeeenn 12
5.2.1.  Existing Communications Capability ........cccccverrrviiireciiierceceienee, 12
5.2.2. TOWN Manager ... e 12

6. Public EMErgency ServiCes. ... cieeeeeee e cae bt s e e eve e s e s n e 13
6.1.  Emergency Public Information..........cccccooievoiiiieccee e 13
6.1.1.  Readfield Select Board ........ccoooeeoeiviierieiis et 12
6.1.2.  Public Information Officer (Town Mgr.)..cccocovoviiiveiiecieeeeeee e, 13

6. 2. EVACUALION. ..ottt eae e ettt et et e s e et sbesb et ersenenens 13
6.2.1.  Emergency Management DireCtor ...........ooeiiveiiiveiicrcieiceces e 14
622, Law EnfOrcement........coiriei ittt e reeens e ere s 14
6.2.3. Town Maintenance.......ccuueeioriieeieiieirniirieisiersesse s esesrss et enessesseses s 14

6.3 Alert and Warning........ccccoccviieirivnrre e e e 14
6.3.1.  Readfield Fire Department.............coveveeioieiecieeeiceeeteceee e 15
6.3.2.  On-call Law Enforcement AZency ...ocoveveeiieveeineiecierceree oo 15
6.3.3.  Available Volunteers or Town Employees.....cccccocooivvvrvcivcenscoerienn 15

0.4, SREIETINE ....oiviiiiie ettt sas s sae e erenee 15
6.4 1. Red CrOSS.cmiiiieceeieeci ettt sttt v e e bt eae st anen 15
642,  TOWN MaNAZET ..c.ccciiiiieieirerrvt et b e e es b 16
6.4.3.  Fire Department ........ccooeevemecmminirtnrcreee vttt renns 16
6.4.4, Available Volunteers or Town Employees........cccoevieiiieevroeesienn 16
6.4.5, Law EnfOrcement......cocovveiiiiiininiiieiesis et v s 17

6.5 TOWN MAINtENANCE. ......eci ittt sttt reers s ers e e b ste e seeeneene 17
6.5.1. MaINTENANCE ...ttt es e b e ees e es s ere e seenn 17

7. PUBLIC SATELY .ottt ettt st 18
7.1 Law ENfOrcement.........cvvviveneiniineseiesrs et 18
7.1.1. Law Enforcement.......c.oeviieiienece ettt 18
7.1.2. TOWN MENAZET ....cciiieieeee ettt ere e st 20
7.1.3. TOWI ATOINEY .ottt et eas e 20

7.2, Fire and RESCUEC......c.cooiviiiieiiiiieiciite sttt en e 20
72,1, Fire Department .........ccovveveirveriesieesieei et eeeereeee ettt eas s e 20

7.3, Hazardous Materials ......cooceoeireiiin it 21
7.3.1 Incident Commander (Incident Control System)..........ocovvveeeveieniiiineane. 21
7.3.2.  Readfield Fire Department......cocccceccverierinririricerenecretceesics e ercevevs 22

7.4. Emergency Medical SErviCes.......cooviiiiineieieeinieneseece e s ens s 22

12-10-2022

Page 2




Appendix 9: Town businesses

7.4.1. Law EnfOrCeIMIENt ..ot e ettt e e e e e e e et e e e e 22

7.4.2.  Emergency Medical Services....cccooovvimmiiiiisinieiceieiiee e 22

7.5.  Disaster Assessment Considerations.........ococoeveieveciieiicoesee e 23
7.5.1. Situations and ASSUNMIPLIONS ...c.viviirieieiiees ettt 23
752, VUINErability ...cooocoeoeeiiieiicieec et 24
7.5.3. ASSUMPLIONS. ..cciiiiiiiiriiiireireerse et ee st ea e ete st ete s s essersssestesssssessesseas e 24

7.6.  Plan Maintenance and TeSting .......cccocovviieiveiiciieiiees et 25
7.6.1.  Annual EOP Maintenance........cceieviirevereereeriiinsivesiesierec e 25
7.6.2.  Annual EOP Testing (Drills) ....covciioiiiieieiiiiee e 25
7.6.3.  Establish an EOP Maintenance and Testing Process.......cocovevvvvviveennne 25
Appendix 1: Contact Information (by function) ............ovveeereveeiceee e 26
Appendix 2: Contact Information (alphabetic listing)............ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiia, 27
Appendix 3: Plan personnel (Identifies personnel named in the Plan).............cccoceve.... 288
Appendix 4: Emergency Operations Center and Backup Emergency Operations Center29
Appendix 5: Contact Information for “At-Risk” individuals .......cccoooevvvvrnir e, 300
Appendix 6: Matrix of Duties and Responsibilities.......c.ccceovveveeveeiverrrieeeecee e 311
Appendix 7 Forms to be used in materials procurement during an emergency.............. 37
Appendix 8: Acronyms used in this document...................oooiiiiiiii . 38

12-10-2022

Page 3




1. Scope and Acceptance

This plan will be used during disastrous situations where the Town’s populace is affected
and will need police, fire, emergency medical, transportation (if deemed necessary),
feeding, and sheltering support. It will bring the user to the point of knowing what is to
be done, and who will do it. It will not detail how these activities will be performed.

Signed:

Select Board Chair

Select Board Vice-chair

Select Board Member

Select Board Member

Select Board Member

Date:

12-10-2022
Page 4




2. Substantive Revision Sheet

The Emergency Operations Plan for the Town of Readfield is regularly reviewed and
revised. The known substantive revision history for this document is as follows:

Date of Revision

Revision Notes (primarily reflect substantive changes)

Dec. 15,2010

Nov. 21, 2011 Changes to reflect “Maintenance” as opposed to “Public Works”,
training requirements added, Appendices updated

Jun. 4, 2012 Appendices updated

Nov. 16, 2012 Appendices updated

May 1, 2013 Appendices updated

Nov. 11,2013 Appendices updated

Sep. 17,2014 Appendices updated

Nov. 14, 2016 Appendices 1-3,5, and 9 revised to reflect current information, some
formatting changes throughout

Nov. 4,2019 Added “Date” line to Section 1, revised format of Section 2,
Appendices 1-3,5, and 9 revised to reflect current information,
revised “Head of Maintenance” to “Maintenance”

Jan. 10, 2022 Revised Appendices, added items to increase accountability

Dec. 12, 2022

Reviewed Plan, Revised Appendices

12-10-2022
Page 5




3. Recovery Flowchart

Disaster

Occurs

Alerts Fire and Rescue Staff
and on-call Law Enforcement

Disaster Reported to the Fire
and Rescue Chief

Town Manager is alerted and
notifies the Select Board Chair
and reports to Disaster Site.

Aagency

Effects Rescue Operations

A 4

Town Mgr. & Fire Chief select
EOC location based on type of

incident
3

v

The Select Board Chair notifies
the Select Board with
instructions of reporting to the
selected EOC

A 4

Senior Town Office Rep. alerts
administrative staff who report

to ECC.
v

Contacts American Red Cross

- Est. Shelters
& Food Services

Notifies the following and
instructs to report to selected
EOC site:

- Maintenance

- On-call Law Enforcement
- Senior Town Office Staff

- County EMA Director

Activates the Emer. Ops. Plan.

Y

Maintenance prepares the
EOC for use in accordance
with floor-plan.

v

At Emer. Ops. Ctr: Town Mgr.
and Select Board Chr. meet

with Kennebec County
contacts and Dept. Heads to
confirm recovery strategy and
discuss resource requirements
from the Backup Site. Dept.
Heads will start recovery

v

v

v

County acquires additional

discussed at Backup Site

resources and misc. support as

Town Mgr. as PIO briefs news
media from Backup Site and
announces briefina schedule

Readfield Department Heads
carry-out the recovery strategy
as discussed in the EOC

12-10-2022

Page 6

v

Town Mgr. monitors recovery
process and responds where
needed.




4. Readfield’s Emergency Organization and Response

It is the intent in developing the Town of Readfield’s Emergency Operations Plan (the
“Plan”) that the Plan will fully comply with the standards and practices stated in the
National Incident Management System (NIMS). In case of any conflict between this Plan
and any NIMS policy, the NIMS policy should have priority and the Plan should be
adjusted accordingly.

This Plan is intended to be an overview of functions to be performed during an
emergency. The Plan does not give detail on how any particular function will be
performed. It is presumed in this Plan that the emergency response providers named in
this Plan will already have developed, and will be well practiced in, execution of their
responsibilities during an emergency.

Implementation of this Plan must be as self-triggering as possible. This is accomplished
through ongoing familiarization of the Plan by all Town employees and through periodic
testing. Operations conducted under this plan require a rapid and coordinated response by
every Town agency, private institution, or other non-governmental agency.

The following is a breakdown of responsibilities organized by groups and/or Emergency
Titles.

41 Select Board:

Setect Board members will be required to complete NIMS Incident Command System
(ICS) courses 100 and 700 and provide certification to the Town Clerk within 90 days of
Election.

1. The Select Board will assume a leadership role during emergency operations and will
be responsible for:

o The Select Board Chair is responsible for alerting other members of the Select
Board

e Activation of the Emergency Operations Plan

o Activation of the Emergency Operations Center (Backup Site)

¢ Monitoring progress of the Emergency Operations Plan through to completion

¢ Coordinate support from the Kennebec County Emergency Management
Agency.

+ Working with the designated Readfield Emergency Management Director and
Town Manager to provide general support.

¢ Chairing all Emergency Management ongoing internal status briefings.

» Authorizing activation of shelters through the American Red Cross

» Authorizing request for assistance with decontamination procedures to the
County EMA Director.

* Authorizing necessary emergency funding requests.

12-10-2022
Page 7




2. Activate and monitor progress of the Emergency Operations Plan which commences
when the Readfield Select Board Chair and Emergency Management Director/Fire
Chief determine that the severity or length of the situation warrants plan
implementation to reduce the threat to life and property to a minimum.

3. Activate the Town Emergency Operations Center. This center will provide
centralized control to direct rescue and recovery operations. The Emergency
Operations Center could be located at either the Readfield Fire Station or the Town
Office, depending on the situation.

4. Alert the Kennebec County Emergency Management Agency (KCEMA), and
authorize its assistance during a Town emergency.

Other Responsibilities (when deemed appropriate):

1. Authorize the alert and order the mobilization of the Town through Emergency
Management functions by arranging for the evacuation of threatened areas through
the Emergency Management Director/Fire Chief.

2. Authorize the notification of local industries, public utility companies, schools, etc.,
of the disaster or pending disaster as necessary.

4.2 Emergency Management Director

The Emergency Management Director/Fire Chief, under the supervision of the Select
Board, shall be responsible for the planning, coordination and operation of the
Emergency Management activity at the disaster site.

The Emergency Management Director/Fire Chief will have completed NIMS ICS courses
100, 700, 701, 702 and 704.

Specific responsibilities include;

1. Reports to the disaster site and determines the recovery strategy that should be used.

2. Determines the capability of the Town to respond to the situation and whether outside
assistance is needed. This will be confirmed when the briefing is conducted at the
emergency Operations Center,

3. Develops and maintains a Town situation map identifying problem areas and
deployment of responders at the Emergency Operations Center.

4. Reports to the Emergency Operations Center (Readfield Fire Station or Town Office)
and conducts a briefing of the recovery strategy to be used and resource requirements
with the Select Board Chair, Town Manager, Department Heads, and the Kennebec
County EMA Director.

12-10-2022
Page 8




5. Prepares for disaster briefings with the Select Board, Department Heads, and the
Town Manager.

6. Ensures all Department Heads have communications capabilities, especially in the
field.

7. Assigns duties to Town Departments that shall be the same or similar to their normal
duties.

8. Monitors the rescue and recovery processes and responds where needed.

4.3 Town Manager

The Town Manager, under the supervision of the Select Board, shall be responsible for
the planning, coordination and operation of the Emergency Management activity at the
Emergency Operations Center.

The Town Manager will complete NIMS ICS courses 100 and 700.

1. The Town Manager is alerted by the Emergency Management Director/Fire Chief
and, in turn, alerts the following people:
e The Kennebec County Emergency Management Director

Select Board Chair

On-call Law Enforcement Agency

Maintenance

Senior Town Office Administrative Staff Contact

2. Provides general support, such as:

* Completing emergency contact of the Select Board Chair, Readfield Dept. Heads,
and Kennebec County EMA Director

e Alerts Maintenance with instructions to prepare the Emergency Operations Center

{EOC) with pre-arranged floor plan for use.
e Alerts the Senior Town Office Administrative Staff Contact who will contact the
Town Administration Staff with instructions of reporting to the EOQC.

3. When the Town Manager performs these tasks, the Emergency Management
Director/Fire Chief is free to concentrate on the rescue and recovery tasks.

4. Oversees the recruitment of volunteer personnel to augment the personnel and
facilities of the Town for emergency management purposes. These volunteers will be
familiarized with the Emergency Information Database (as defined in the appendices)
while completing the following types of tasks:
* Conducts disaster notifications to Town residents, other boards, and agencies (as

directed).
¢ Tracks equipment and materials resources utilizing forms in the Appendices.
12-10-2022

Page 9




» Conducts telephone support by answering the telephones and recording messages
at the Emergency Operations Center.

¢ Serves as communication coordinator to the local populace.

» Initiates the contact to local residents that need follow-up (i.e. “Are you OK?”)

¢ In general, provides support as needs arise.

5. Contacts the American Red Cross to arrange for sheltering and feeding support. It is
understood that that the Red Cross may not be able to provide all the resources that
may be requested, and the Town Manager will be expected to supplement Red Cross
support using local volunteer forces.

6. Assists in acquiring and managing of emergency supplies that will be stored at the
EOC/Readfield Fire Station.

7. Functions as the Public Information Officer:

» Attends all emergency internal status briefings held by the Select Board and
prepares/conducts news briefings to the media.

e Issues information and advice to the general public. Must be prepared to brief
news media and answer questions. Prepares and announces a schedule for future
briefings for the news media.

¢ Notifies news media of time and site of any press conferences.

Includes school representative as needed in press conferences.

e The Public Information Officer will have completed appropriate NIMS ICS

training,.

12-10-2022
Page 10




5. Emergency Support

5.1 Emergency Operations Center (EOC)

The Emergency Operations Center (EOC) is the de facto Emergency Town Hall and
serves as a central point where communications, command, and control for rescue and
recovery efforts are planned and staged.

5.1.1. Maintenance:

Prepares the Emergency Operations Center for use by following a pre-established
floor-plan illustrating how the space will be utilized between the various groups
who will occupy the site.

Provides power, lighting, and other needs as directed by the Town Manager to the
EOC and other locations as directed.

5.1.2 Town Office Administrative Staff

References the Readfield Emergency Information Database when completing the
following functions:

Alerts Town employees as directed.
Reports to the EOC and contacts communications, office supply, and other
vendors as directed.

Ensures the EOC is equipped with the necessary office supplies, area maps, and
easel.

Ensures that information received from departments deployed in the field is
recorded and passed to the Emergency Management Director for evaluation.
Tracks all expenses that relate to Town recovery efforts.

Conducts disaster notifications to Town employees.

5.1.3 Town Manager

Manages the recruitment and use of volunteers, though may delegate functions to
the Fire Department Auxiliary due to logistics experience.

Arranges for personal services to the Staff such as food, water, etc.

Arranges for physical security of the EOC,

Reserves space at the EOC for the American Red Cross representative(s).

12-10-2022
Page 11




5.2 Communications Among Emergency Agencies

5.21. Existing Communications Capability

¢ The EOC could be located in the Readfield Fire Station, the Town Office, ora
school building and will use telephones for communications.

¢ One telephone line is available at the Fire Station. An additional telephone line
could be added. The Fire Department, Maintenance, and Town Manager have 2-
way radios. The Fire Department will provide additional radios to the EOQC kits.

¢ The Fire Department, Maintenance, and Town Manager have cellular “smart”
telephones. An additional smart phone will be available to the EOC.

5.2.2. Town Manager

» Establishes a network for telephones (and cell phones) in the EOC and ensures a
directory of all Town departments and agencies is available to all groups.

e Ensures that all personnel are familiarized with the emergency communications
arrangements.

12-10-2022
Page 12




6. Public Emergency Services

6.1. Emergency Public Information

The Public Information Officer (PIO) provides accurate and official information and
instructions to the Town residents through all available media before, during, and after
emergencies. The Town Manager, under direction of the Select Board, will function as
the Public Information Officer.

Considerations/Assumptions:
o The local news media will be asked to cooperate with the Public Information
Officer in providing information and instructions to the public in an emergency.
¢ No information releases will be made concerning bomb threats at the schools.

News Sources:
e FM station WMME (92 MOOSE) can provide information instructions to the
public during an emergency.
e Maine State Police Dispatch will take requests to provide immediate information
through the Emergency Alert System (EAS).

¢ The Kennebec Journal will be asked to publish informational and instructional
material when the situation warrants.

6.1.1. Readfield Select Board

e Attends all disaster briefings and works with the Public Information Officer
(Town Manager) and approves news releases.

6.1.2. Public Information Officer (Town Manager)

e Selects personnel to assist in providing fast accurate reporting during
emergencies.

¢ Coordinates the collection and evaluation of information and instructions for the
public.

» Maintains a list of local news media personnel and their phone numbers within
the Town.

» FEstablishes an information center at the Emergency Operations Center for the
media.

» Prepares news releases with Emergency Management Director and submits to
Select Board for approval.

6.2. Evacuation

Service heads of Town departments involved in emergency response have responsibility
to recommend evacuation as a viable method of protecting lives before, during, or after
disasters or emergencies that may affect the Town. This recommendation, time
permitting, will be directed to the Select Board for implementation and coordination from
the Emergency Operations Center. Town Agencies have a responsibility to assist in the

12-10-2022
Page 13




warning and evacuation including establishing evacuation routes, safe areas,
transportation and coordination with shelter.

6.2.1. Emergency Management Director

* Develops an evacuation plan with the Select Board, Town Departments, Law
Enforcement, and Kennebec County EMA.
¢ Coordinates with Schools (RSU #38 and Kents Hill) for access to buses.

6.2.2, Law Enforcement

s Determines traffic and crowd control,
* Maintains security of evacuated areas.
¢ Alerts the general public of evacuation arrangements (i.e.: locations and times).

6.2.3. Maintenance

¢ Conducts road damage assessments.
» Directs contractors in clearing of debris from Town roads.

6.2.4, Select Board

¢ Develops an evacuation plan with the Emergency Management Director, Town
Departments, Law Enforcement, and Kennebec County EMA,

6.3 Alert and Warning

The Maine State Police or the Kennebec County Sheriff’s Office has primary
responsibility for initial reception of any warning disseminated by the County. The Fire
Chief has the responsibility of Emergency Operations Center Staff notification. Public
notice must be given if the method of protecting the public includes sheltering and/or
evacuation.

The Town has agreed to make contact with “at-risk” individuals during certain
emergency situations. Responsibility for implementing this contact process resides with
the Fire Chief, who may delegate the contact process within his direct staff or to the Fire
Department Auxiliary.

Town departments will use the municipal frequency for interface including a land-line to
the Schools (RSU #38 or Kents Hill) to staff their bases if the situation so requires.
Primary communications with the media, County, and other surrounding local
governments will be by telephone. The Maine State Police/County Sheriff’s Office radio
and the Mutual Aid Fire radio systems can be utilized as back-up as necessary. If shelters
are utilized, primary communications will be cellular telephone. If the situation
indicates, Town portable radios, Town mobile radio-equipped vehicles, or messengers
will be used.

12-10-2022
Page 14




Considerations/Assumptions:

The Readfield Fire Chief is the Warning Officer.

The Schools have viable alert notification systems.

Readtield currently has no sirens.

Any outdoor warning devices will be maintained.

Provide a liaison with the American Red Cross language data bank personnel for
hearing impaired and non-English speaking groups as appropriate.

6.3.1. Readfield Fire Department

¢ Verify warnings before dissemination.
¢ Alert the Emergency Operations Center Staff when it is activated.

» Disseminate a warning to the public using sirens, public address systems, Town
agencies, volunteers, and media as required.

6.3.2. On-call Law Enforcement Agency

¢ The on-call Law Enforcement Agency has the responsibility for alert notification
and for contacting the Readfield Fire Chief.

6.3.3. Available Volunteers or Town Employees

o Verify warnings before dissemination.

¢  Assist the Fire Department in warning the public as directed.

¢ Conduct door-to-door warnings as necessary for part of the population,
L]

Verify that nursing homes, major industries and other key locations have been
notified. (Refer to the Readfield Emergency Information Database.)

6.4. Sheltering

The Town of Readfield could be subjected to the effects of a disaster requiring the
sheltering of a significant number of people for an indefinite period of time. If such a
disaster occurs, shelter will be provided in predetermined locations selected and arranged
by the American Red Cross. Activation of shelters will be determined by the Select
Board and will be dependent on the magnitude of the disaster. The American Red Cross
has both the expertise and experience in operating public shelters.

Considerations/Assumptions:
¢ Primary shelter communications will be by telephone. Radios and messengers
may also be utilized when available. If additional radio communications are
desired, requests will be coordinated through the Town Emergency Management
Director/Fire Chief. The use of Amateur Radio Operators will be considered
according to availability (and could be pre-identified).

6.4.1. Red Cross

e Special needs of the elderly, handicapped, institutionalized, and those with
language barriers are recognized and will be addressed.

12-10-2022
Page 15




* The American Red Cross will recruit necessary volunteers to complement the
Shelter Operations Staff.

e The American Red Cross will coordinate with the Town Emergency Management
Director and the Town Manager for any additional support that can be provided
by local government agencies or by local volunteers.

o Shelters in the Town of Readfield will not normally be stocked. The American
Red Cross will obtain supplies through local sources when possible.

¢ Members of the American Red Cross and volunteers, recruited from County
agencies or the local populace, will constitute each individual shelter
organization.

e An American Red Cross representative may report to the Emergency Operations
Center when necessary to assist in the coordination of shelter operations.

* The American Red Cross will be the Manager of the emergency shelters.
Assistance in feeding may be provided by volunteers.

» Health requirements and inquiries about missing persons will be the responsibility
of the American Red Cross assisted by Town Health Officer, if necessary.

These tasks will be reviewed with the American Red Cross to verify that they are
realistic,

6.4.2. Town Manager

¢ Will notify the American Red Cross Shelter Service of the need for shelter
services.

*  Will be liaison between the Town and the American Red Cross Shelter
Coordinator.

» Wil coordinate outside shelter assistance requested from Town Departments
and/or agencies.

¢ Will prepare status charts at the Emergency Operations Center to indicate the
location of shelters, available spaces, etc.

¢ Coordinates public information concerning shelters.

¢ Requests, through the Select Board, assistance of the County EMA Director when
the nature of the disaster requires that decontamination procedures are necessary.

» If deemed appropriate, the Town Manager will be consulted prior to shelter
occupants returning to their homes. Public safety will be a major concern in
order to ensure that any remaining hazards have been identified and that shelter
occupants have received adequate information for their personal protection.

6.4.3. Fire Department

s Fire inspections will be continually performed by the Fire Department in
designated shelters. The department will develop and use a protocol or check list
or sheet for fire inspections for buildings/shelters.

6.4.4. Available Volunteers or Town Employees

* A log of incoming and outgoing messages concerning shelter operations will be
maintained.

12-10-2022
Page 16




6.4.5. Law Enforcement

Will provide security at these shelters for public safety.

6.5 Maintenance

Arranges for manpower, equipment, and vehicles to maintain roadways as directed by the
Town Manager and assists other Town agencies, when requested, with personnel,
material and equipment, before, during, and after disasters and emergencies. Coordinates
activities of contractors who will provide equipment and manpower as needed.

Considerations/Assumptions:

Limited emergency supplies are maintained at the Readfield Fire Station and
checked annually in January by Fire Department or Maintenance staff.
Emergency funding will be requested through the Select Board before, during,
and after disaster/emergencies.

Maintenance will maintain records of purchases and disbursements, and of hours
worked, applicable to the disaster/emergency that will be kept for later
reimbursement.

Maintenance will receive warning of a disaster or emergency through
communications by telephone, Fire Department Radio, or messenger.
Maintenance has a radio for communicating with the Fire Department and Town
Manager on the municipal frequency.

6.5.1. Maintenance

Preparations for Maintenance:

Notifies contractors when needed.

e Coordinates and prioritizes the actions of the contractors.

¢ Maintains records of contractor activities for use in cost accounting.

e Checks all appropriate Town equipment and vehicles.

¢ Provides some services with Town equipment in addition to contractors.

If necessary to restore or maintain essential services:
e Makes use of local contractors.
¢ Maintenance is responsible for:
o Day-to-day Emergency operations of the Maintenance department and
coordination with other Town agencies.
o Clearing of debris from Town roads.
Supplying emergency power, if needed, to emergency shelters,
o Coordinating transportation through the Select Board, Town Manager
or the Town Emergency Management Director.
o Training for Emergency Operations Preparation (in accordance with
floor-plan) for other Town personnel.
o Maintaining and repairing of Town vehicles.
o Reporting to the Emergency Operations Center, if opened, and
recommending its opening if the situation warrants.

O

12-10-2022
Page 17




7. Public Safety

7.1

Law Enforcement

Assistance will be available from the Maine State Police or the Kennebec County
Sheriff’s Office.

Considerations/Assumptions:

Mission:

* Protecting life and property.

Assisting in warning of residents,

Maintaining law and order.

Emergency traffic control.

Crowd Control.

Assisting residents when evacuating their homes or businesses.

Emergency communications equipment is maintained and operated through the
Town’s Fire Department Headquarters by a Dispatcher.

Twenty-four hour dispatch is covered by the Maine State Police or the Kennebec
County Sherift’s Office.

The Maine State Police and the Kennebec County Sheriff’s Office have radio
communications capability with Readfield’s Fire Department, Maintenance, and
Town Manager.

71.1. Law Enforcement (for KSO and State Police only)

Normal channels will be used for day-to-day operations.
In the event a warning is received or a disaster or emergency occurs, the
following will be instituted:

o All off-duty personnel who are residents will be called-in.
All personnel will be placed on stand-by.
All equipment will be checked and prepared for use.
Feeding and lodging of emergency personnel will be instituted.
Security and protection of departmental personnel will be maintained by
the department or by calling in other area law enforcement agencies.
Area Police assistance is provided and coordinated through the Maine State
Regional Communication Center in Augusta.

c o 00

7.1.2. Town Manager

Emergency funding will be requested through the Select Board before, during, or
after disasters or emergencies.

Evacuation of endangered areas will be accomplished using a mobile public
address system (provided by Fire Department or Maintenance) followed by a
door-to-door check, with transportation to shelters coordinated with the Town
Manager and Volunteer Pool.

12-10-2022
Page 18




7.1.3. Town Attorney

¢ Legal questions will be referred by the Town Manager to the Town Attorney.

7.2. Fire and Rescue

The Fire Department has the primary responsibility of responding to emergencies in the
Town when a fire or threat of fire may exist. It has a responsibility of responding to fire
emergencies in neighboring towns through mutual aid compacts. The Fire Department
can expect assistance from other Town agencies upon request. Occurrence of an
emergency in any of these priority areas, or other hazards not identified, could require a
major response from the Department or have an effect on their capability to respond to
other emergencies.

Implementation must be as self-triggering as possible and not dependent upon the
presence of a particular individual. Fire Department Personnel carry pagers and will
normally be notified by Public Safety Dispatch or the Fire Chief if a response by the
Department is required.

Considerations/Assumptions:
e Telephone fan-out can be used as a back-up.

* A command post shall be established at the scene with responding agencies
reporting on arrival.

* On-scene communications frequency is 154.145.

» Fire apparatus is radio equipped with this frequency.

» The Fire Department also has portable radios with multiple frequencies capable of
communicating with other departments, medical services, and hospitals.

o The Fire Chief, or Officer-in-Charge if the Fire Chief is not available, has the
responsibility as Town Warning Officer for disseminating severe weather
warnings.

7.21. Fire Department

e The Fire Chief has the responsibility of assisting in warning the population in an
area recommended for evacuation.

» If shelters are identified for use, the Fire Chief has the responsibility of fire
inspections and of establishing procedures for adequate fire controls for shelter
occupancy. The above will be coordinated with the Town Emergency
Management Director/Fire Chief.

7.3. Hazardous Materials

The regional HAZMAT Team will provide support to Readfield as needed. The analysis
includes fixed facilities as well as hazards on railways and highways.

Public warning of a hazardous materials incident can be made over radio and television
stations if necessary by activating the Emergency Alert System.

12-10-2022
Page 19




Considerations/Assumptions:

Loudspeakers are available in fire trucks and police cruisers. These could be used
to provide instructions to residents in a local area. Door-to-door warning
procedures may also be used.

The Maine State Police or the Kennebec County Sheriff’s Office will play a
primary role in establishing traffic control and access control during the early
stages of an incident. If an evacuation is ordered, they will also provide security
and property protection of homes and businesses in the evacuated area.

Kennebec County Emergency Management Agency or Maine State Police
Dispatch can be contacted to request the HAZMAT team, Department of
Environmental Protection, and other necessary resources.

7.31 Incident Commander (Incident Control System)

The Emergency Management Director/Fire Chief or the Public Information
Officer/Town Manager will disseminate official information and instructions to
the public when it is judged a potential for public harm is present. An emergency
message must indicate what has happened, what can be expected to happen, and
what measures people should take to protect themselves. Evacuation instructions
should explicitly describe the importance of leaving the area quickly and where to
go. If an extensive evacuation is required, involving more than one family for
more than 12 hours, a shelter will be designated.

A sample emergency message would be “At 00.00, emergency personnel were
notified that an incident had occurred at the rail crossing Route 17 in Readfield
Depot, resulting in the release of toxic chemicals. Residents of Readfield living
within I mile of this rail crossing are advised to leave the area immediately. All
efforts are being made to control the chemical release. Local and County
officials have been notified. Additional details will be released as they become
available.”

If there is an immediate life-threatening situation, the Incident Commander may
order a precautionary evacuation of affected areas.

The Town of Readfield receives ambulance service from Winthrop Ambulance.
Medical services are provided by the Maine General Hospital in Augusta.
Chemical-specific treatment and decontamination protocols for EMS personnel
leaving an incident scene will be specified by the Incident Commander if the
potential for spreading hazardous materials contamination is present. The
Incident Commander is also responsible for notifying the hospital of the materials
to which incident casualties have been exposed, if known.,

7.3.2, Readfield Fire Department

Hazardous Materials incidents are often accompanied by fire or injured persons.
The Fire Officer-in-Charge shall regulate access to a hazardous materials scene by
fire fighters and emergency rescue personneli to control risk exposure.

Firefighters are primarily responsible for fighting fires and must avoid
unnecessary hazardous materials exposure. Extrication of injured persons will
usually involve entry into a hazardous condition. Rescue personnel must wear

12-10-2022
Page 20




protective equipment and clothing when conducting rescues as indicated by the
Incident Commander.

As soon as practical after any response, an inventory check shall be completed of
all emergency response equipment owned by the Fire Department and the Town
Maintenance Department. Missing or damaged items or equipment shall by
repaired or replaced.

7.4. Emergency Medical Services

Any agency or department receiving information of an incident where potential mass
casualties exists shall immediately notify the Maine State Police and relay the
information they have received to Kennebec County Emergency Management Agency,
who will then notify the Maine Emergency Management Agency Duty Officer.

7.4.1. Law Enforcement

The State Police will, without further confirmation, notify MEMA there is a
potential of a Mass Casualty Incident under direction of the Kennebec Emergency
Management Agency.

7.4.2. Emergency Medical Services

The first arriving unit: state or local police, sheriff, fire officer, or EMS crew
chief, will then confirm the nature of the incident to include the safety and
stability of the scene, the approximate number and severity of the injured, or
report, the information to the State Police.

Based on the information received from the scene, a Mass Casualty Incident may
be declared.

The basic criteria for the declaration shall be any incident that will overload
capabilities and resources of the local medical community.

Readfield’s Fire Department will provide a secondary dispatch center to handle
non-emergency dispatch for notification of back-up crews, additional equipment,
etc.

All emergency responders shall follow their department’s standard operating
procedures for a mass casualty incident.

12-10-2022
Page 21




7.5. Disaster Assessment Considerations

7.5.1. Situations and Assumptions

The Town of Readfield, located in Kennebec County, in the south central section of the
State of Maine, has an area of 32 square miles and a population of 2597 (2020 census).

State highways; Routes 17, 41, and 135 provide major highway access to the Town.

The Town of Readfield has railroad traffic.

The Town has a paid part-time Fire Department.
Mutual Aid System: The Town of Readfield has mutual aid agreements with Fayette,
Mount Vernon, Wayne, and Vienna.

The Town has a limited Maintenance Department (two full-time employees).

Buses from the RSU #38 School District and Kents Hill School could provide passenger
service in an emergency.

Law enforcement is handled by the Maine State Police (MSP) alternatively with the
Kennebec County Sheriff’s Office.

Maine State Regional Dispatch Center will provide dispatching services.

The RSU #38’s school bus garage is located in Readfield. A Maine DOT Highway
Maintenance garage is located in Winthrop.

There are four (4) schools located in Readfield: Kents Hill School, Maranacook High
School, Maranacook Middle School, and Readfield Elementary School.

The types of industries in Town include manufacturing, auto repair, restaurants, a small
grocery store /convenience store, post offices, agriculture, building contractors, many
home-based businesses, and summer camps.

There is a Transfer Station on the North Road that serves both Readfield, Fayette and
Wayne.

Maranacook Family Healthcare is located on South Road. Winthrop Family Practice is
on Main Street in Winthrop village to the south of Readficld via Route 41/Route 133.
The Maine General Medical Center in Augusta is the closest major medical facility which
is approximately 10 miles away.

12-10-2022
Page 22




7.5.2. Vulnerability:

Flood plains exist mostly in areas that surround Maranacook Lake and Torsey Pond.
Advanced weather prediction is not always accurate and extreme precipitation can
develop without adequate waming. Flooding, especially flash flooding, can impact areas
in Town that are located above or near designated flood plains. The frequency of extreme
weather events fluctuates from year to year.

7.5.3. Assumptions:

FLOODS: Floods are the most probable natural cause of emergencies or disasters in the
Town of Readfield. Spring thaws and ice breakups may cause some lowland flooding.
Summer and fall storms are more likely to be responsible for major flooding.

WINTER STORMS: Winter storms with snow, ice and freezing temperatures in various
combinations are fairly commonplace in Readfield, Maine. The Town is geared to handle
most winter emergencies. A potential for emergency exists when such storms also result
in loss of electric power, leaving people without adequate heating capability. Heavy wet
snows of early fall and late spring cause most power failures, however ice storms can also
cause power outages.

WINDSTORMS: Violent windstorms are possible in Readfield, Maine. Hurricanes hit
Maine in 1938, 1954, 1960, 1963, 1985, 1991, and 2011. Most windstorms result in
downed trees, damaged telephone and power lines, and crop losses.

DROUGHT: Drought can be a problem in late summer with local springs and well levels
reduced to minimal flows. Water tables reached an all-time low during the national
drought of 1988, however recovery was fairly rapid.

WILDFIRE: Wildfires are possible in the forested areas of Town during late summer
ahd early fall. The forests contain potential fuel for a serious conflagration. Some
recreation and retirement homes with single access roads are in jeopardy. Fire detection
methods are basically good, with special efforts being made during fire seasons.

EARTHQUAKE: Earthquakes have been felt on the state’s coastal areas in the past and
remain a geological possibility. Readfield is situated in an unlikely earthquake zone
though it experienced a small quake in October 2012. Although earthquakes are not a
frequent event, they have the potential to cause extensive damage to un-reinforced
masonry (brick) buildings.

NATIONAL EMERGENCIES: National emergencies, including a possible attack by
foreign interests, are not as likely as during the cold war. Since Readfield is dependent
upon outside resources for a large percentage of food and fuel supplies, any situation

which might affect this system could have a severe impact upon the Town’s population.

12-10-2022
Page 23




TECHNOLOGICAL HAZARDS: Hazardous Materials lead the list of potential
hazards which could impact the Town of Readtield. Fuels are the most widespread
materials likely to create problems. Chemicals used in manufacturing, auto repair shops,
and agriculture businesses are sources of possible HAZMAT incidents. Small quantities
of Hazardous Materials are stored at the Transfer Station.

RADIOLOGICAL EMERGENCIES are possible from vehicles traveling on state
highways 135, 17, and 41.

AIRCRAFT CRASHES can happen anywhere in Maine. Small private planes and
military aircraft are more common in Kennebec County air space. A commercial airliner,
off course in bad weather, could become involved with CMP high altitude power lines
and pose a threat for creating mass casualties.

SHORTAGES: The shortage of energy or food supplies could threaten the welfare of the
citizens of Readfield. The dependency upon out-of-state sources can become a problem
when normal deliveries are interrupted.

PANDEMIC FLU: Readfield has previously developed a response plan in the event of a
widespread (regional) influenza outbreak. The response plan is detailed in the
“Kennebec County Pandemic Flu Plan” available at the Town Office. Experience with
COVID-19 has resulted in the development of detailed response strategies and resources.

7.6. Plan Maintenance and Testing

7.6.1. Annual EOP Maintenance:

The Readfield Select Board will be responsible for keeping this plan up-to-date by an
annual review during or close to January of each year. This should be preceded by
review and update of EOP Appendices by the Town Manager or designee.

Changes happen throughout the year that may involve personnel, operating
procedures, and equipment used by all Town departments. These changes may
require updates to the Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) in order to maintain its
effectiveness. Changes should be incorporated by the Town Manager and recorded
for consideration at the next annual review.

It is recommended that a walk-through of the EOP be conducted annually by all
Town department heads (collectively) to identify where updates to the EOP are
required.

12-10-2022
Page 24




7.6.2. Annual EOP Testing (Drills):

Testing this EOP annually ensures its ongoing effectiveness especially where changes
to personnel, operating methods, and equipment are involved. This is also true where
Mutual Aid Agreements and personnel contacts with surrounding communities exist.

Testing should happen within three months of the annual EOP review.

A Post-EOP Test Evaluation should be conducted to determine the overall
effectiveness of Town response. Also updating the EQOP with this resulting
information will assist in maintaining its effectiveness.

7.6.3. Establish an EOP Maintenance and Testing Process:

The following is a list of recommended tasks to ensure the Emergency Operations
Plan (EOP) maintains ongoing effectiveness from year-to-year by legislatively
requiring the processes to be updated and to test the EOP annually as a required
annual business function:

e Pass a Town Meeting article requiring that the annual updating and testing of
the EOP takes place. (This article was passed at the June 13, 2013 Town
Meeting.)

» Lstablish an annual schedule for these events to take place. Example: August
the EOP is updated, September the EOP is tested, and in October the test
results are evaluated which may result in further updates to the EQP.

e Identify the costs involved with conducting these tests.

¢ Add the cost of conducting this test of the EOP to the annual Town budget.
(This has been done on an ongoing basis.)

Completing these steps will ensure the effectiveness of the Town
Emergency Operations Plan 1s always well maintained and effective.

12-10-2022
Page 25




Appendix 1: Personnel Contact Information by function

Plan Participant Individual Address Phone (Primary) | Phone
Assigned {Secondary)

Town Manager Eric Dyer 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield 685-4939 242-5437

Select Board Chair Dennis Price 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield 577-4919

Select Board Vice Chair Kathryn Woodsum 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield 685-9094 441-2712

Select Board member Carol Doorenbos 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield 446-7535

Select Board member Sean Keegan 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield 446-8725

Select Board member Steve DeAngelis 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield 242-7172

Maintenance Matt Seems 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield 685-4939 931-7681

Readfield Emergency Lee Mank 1288 Main Street, Readfield 685-8187 458-9495

Management Director

Deputy Readfield Mike Nolette Sturtevant Hill Road, Readfield

Emergency Management

Director

Kennebec County Sean Goodwin 125 State Street, Augusta 623-8407 441-6260

Emergency Management

Director

Senior Town Hall Teresa Shaw 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield 685-4939

Administrative Staff Kristin Parks

Contacts

Public Information Officer | Eric Dyer above above above

Readfield Fire Chief Lee Mank above above above

Amateur Radio Operator Eric Dyer above Call Sign - KC1KDB | above

Readfield Town Health Chip Stephens 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield | 931-7689

Officer

American Red Cross United Valley 1180 Lisbon Street, Lewiston 795-4004

contact Chapter

Volunteer coordinator John Perry Route 41, Kents Hill 685-3531

12-10-2022
Page 26




Appendix 2: Personnel Contact Information (alphabetic listing)

Plan Participant | Individual Assigned Address Phone Phone
(Primary) (Secondary)
Carol Doorenbos Select Board member 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield 446-7535
Chip Stephens Readfield Town Health 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield 931-7689
Officer
Dennis Price Select Board Chair 8 0ld Kents Hill Road, Readfield 577-4919
Eric Dyer Town Manager 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield 685-4939 242-5437
Eric Dyer Public Information Officer above above above
Eric Dyer Amateur Radio Operator above Call Sign - above
KC1KDB
John Perry Volunteer coordinator Route 41, Kents Hill 685-3531
Kathryn Woodsum | Select Board Vice Chair 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield 685-9094 441-2712
Lee Mank Readfield Emergency 1288 Main Street, Readfield 685-8187 458-9495
Management Director
Lee Mank Readfield Fire Chief above above above
Matt Seems Maintenance 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield 685-4939 931-7681
Mike Nolette Deputy Readfield Emergency | Sturtevant Hill Road, Readfield
Management Director
Steve DeAngelis Select Board member 8 0ld Kents Hill Road, Readfield 242-7172
Teresa Shaw, Senior Town Hall 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield 685-4939

Kristin Parks

Administrative Staff Contacts

12-10-2022

Page 27




Appendix 3: Plan Participants (Identifies personnel named in the Plan)

Plan Participant Individual Assigned | Address Phone Phone
(Primary) | (Secondary)

Amateur Radio Operator Eric Dyer above Call Sign - above
KC1KDB

American Red Cross contact | United Valley Chapter 1180 Lisbon Street, Lewiston 795-4004

Deputy Readfield Mike Nolette Sturtevant Hill Road, Readfield

Emergency Management

Director

Kennebec County Sean Goodwin 125 State Street, Augusta 623-8407 441-6260

Emergency Management

Director

Maintenance Matt Seems 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield | 685-4939 931-7681

Public Information Officer Eric Dyer above above above

Readfield Emergency Lee Mank 1288 Main Street, Readfield 685-8187 458-9495

Management Director

Readfield Fire Chief Lee Mank above above above

Readfield Town Health Chip Stephens 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield | 831-7639

Officer

Select Board Chair Dennis Price 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield | 577-4919

Select Board Vice Chair Kathryn Woodsum 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield 685-9094 441-2712

Select Board member Carol Doorenbos 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield | 446-7535

Select Board member Steve DeAngelis 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield | 242-7172

Select Board member Sean Keegan 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield | 446-8725

12-10-2022
Page 28




Appendix 4: Emergency Operations Center and Backup Emergency Operations
Center

Locations in order of preference or depending on emergency location:

- Fire Station / Heavy Rescue (Mobile)-
- Town Office,

- Transfer Station

Tables, chairs, computers will be available in each location. EOC kits will be located in
at least three locations, currently the Fire Station, Town office, and Transfer Station.
EOC kits shall be inspected and replenished annually by the Town Manager or designee
in conjunction with the annual EOP review.

Separate areas for general operations and briefings will be established at any EQC.

12-10-2022
Page 29




Appendix 5: Contact Information for “At-Risk” Individuals

A list has been developed and will be updated periodically by the Town Office, with a
copy sent to the Fire Department. Updated list will be included in the EOQC kits.

12-10-2022
Page 30




Appendix 6: Matrix of Duties and Responsibilities

Plan Developing and | Organizational Providing support Providing direct Providing
Participant | maintaining the | arrangementsin |during an emergency | service during an Public Safety
Plan support of the Plan emergency during an
emergency
Town s  Participatesin |  Activates and * Manages the If the nature of the
Manager annual testing or administers Town recruitment and use of disaster requires that

review of the
Plan.

¢ Makes
arrangement for
annual testing or
review of the
Plan.

¢  Completes ICS
courses 100 and

700.

volunteer force

»  Arranges for contact
of the American Red
Cross to arrange for
sheltering and
feeding support

*  Assists in acquiring
and managing of
emergency supplies
will be stored at the
Readfield Fire
Station,

s  Funnels requests for
emergency funding
to the Select Board.

volunteers

Arranges for personal
services to the Staff
such as food, water,
etc.

Arranges for physical
security of the EOC
Reserves space, at the
EQC, for the American
Red Cross
representative(s)
Establishes a network
for telephones (and cell
phones) in the EOC and
ensures a directory of
all town departments
and agencies is
available to all groups
Ensures that all
personnel are
familiarized with the
emergency
communications
arrangements.

Notifies the American
Red Cross Shelter
Service of the need for
shelter services.

Serves as liaison
between the Town and
the American Red
Cross Shelter

Coordinates outside
shelter assistance
requested from Town
Departments and/or
agencies.

Coordinates resources
for evacuation of
citizens.

Refers legal issues to
Town Attorney

decontamination
procedures are
necessary, assistance
will be requested
through the Select
Board to the County
EMA Director.

If deemed appropriate,
the Town Manager will
be consulted prior to
release of shelter
occupants. Public
safety will be a major
concern in order to
ensure that any
remaining hazards have
been identified and that
shelter occupants have
received adequate
information for their
perscnal protection.

12-10-2022
Page 31




Public

Notifies the

Selects personnel to

Information following personnel assist in providing fast
Officer when an emergency accurate reporting
has occurred: during emergencies.
«  The Kennebee Coordinates the
County Lmergency collection and
Management .
Director evaluation of
¢ Sclect Board Chair information
*  Kenncbee County instructions for the
EMA Director public.
* g:fgfc“er];?;t Maintains a list of local
Agency news media personnel
¢ Maintenance , with within the town
instruction to together with their
prepare the EOC telephone numbers.
*  Senior Town Hall .
Administrative Staff Establishes an
Contact, with information center at
instruction to contact the Emergency
remainder of Town .
Staf, Operations Center for
the media.
Prepares news releases
with Select Board and
Emergency
Management Director.
Coordinates public
information concerning
shelters
Select Board [  Participatesin  [o  Alerts other
Chair annual testing or members of the
review of the Select Board
Plan. e Meets with EMD to
*  Will perform {or determine if
cause to be Emergency Op Plan
performed) an needs to be
“after-the- activated.
emergency”
debriefing of all
participants.
Select Board |[*»  Approves s Activates the Attends all disaster .
changes to the Emergency briefings and works
Plan Operations Plan with the Public

Participates in

Activates the

Information Officer

annual testing or Emergency (Town Mgr.) and
review of the Operations Center approves news releases,
Plan. (Backup Site)

e Assures that cost|e  Monitors progress of
of conducting the Emergency
annual testing or Operations Plan
review is through to
included in completion
Town budget. |  Coordinates support

®  Assures that the from the Kennebec
Plan is fully County Emergency

Management
12-10-2022

Page 32




staffed at all
times, and that
the Plan
personnel] shown
in Appendix 3
are identified.

Agency.

Works with the
designated Readfield
Emergency
Management
Birector/Fire Chief

e All Select Board and Town Manager
members will to provide general
complete ICS support.
courses 100 and |*  Chairs all
700. Emergency
Management
ongoing status
meetings.
s  Authorizes
activation of shelters
through American
Red Cross
*  Authorizes
assistance of County
EMA Director for
decontamination
procedures.
*  Authorizes necessary
emergency funding
requests.
+  Authorizes
evacuation of Town
areas upon
recommendation of
Emergency
Management
Director
*  Authorizes
notification of Town
businesses during an
emergency.
Maintenance |* Participatesin  |¢  Calls in local Prepares EOC foruse |  Conducts road damage
annual testing or contractors as by emergency assessiments
review of the needed to providers, according to |o Reports to the
Plan, supplement staff. prearranged layout. Emergency Operations
*  Receives Provides other support Center, if opened, and
training in services at direction of recommends its
Emergency Town Manager. opening if the situation
Operations warrants.
Preparation (in s Assumes responsibility
accordance with for:
floor-plan) for e Day-to-day emergency
department operations of
personnel. contractors, and
. Maintains local Coordmallon. with other
: Town agencies.
contractor in s Approving and
state of readiness maintaining records of
to provide contractor activities.
. Clearing debris from
12-10-2022

Page 33




emergency
services

Town roads.

. Supplying emergency
power as needed to
emergency shelters.

. Coordinating
emergency
ransportation services
through the Town
Leaders and Town
Emergency
Management Director.

e Maintaining/repairing
Town equipment and
vehicles.

Readfield
Emergency
Management

Director/Fire |,

Chief

Participates in
annual testing or
review of the
Plan.

Completes ICS
courses 100,
700, 701, 702,
704.

Assures elements of
the Plan are
compliant with
National Incident
Management System
(NIMS),

Assures that any
changes to the Plan
are recommended to
Select Board for
approval.

Assures that a
Deputy Emergency
Management
Director is appointed
by the Town.

Reports to the disaster
site and determines the
recovery strategy that
should be used
Determines the
capability of the Town
to respond to the
situation and whether
outside assistance is
needed.

Develops and maintains
a town situation map
identifying problem
areas and deployment
of responders at the
Emergency Operations
Center

Reports to the
Emergency Operations
Center (Readfield Fire
Station) and conducts a
briefing of the recovery
strategy to be used and
resource requirements
with the Select Board
Chair, Town Manapger,
Department Heads, and
the Kennebec County
EMA Director.
Prepares for disaster
briefings with the
Select Board,
department heads, and
the Town Manager
Ensures all department
heads have
communication

Develops an evacuation
plan with the Select
Board, Town
departments, Law
Enforcement, and
County EMA
Coordinates with
Schools for access to
buses

-

Requests
Public Safety
assistance as
necessary from
Maine State
Police or from
Kennebec
County
Sheriff’s
Office.

12-10-2022
Page 34




capabilities.

Assigns duties to Town
Departments that shall
be the same or similar
to their normal duties.

Monitors the rescue
and recovery processes
and responds where
needed.

Readfield

®  Participates in Performs fire Provides direct
Fire Chief annual testing or ingpections in eImergency services as
and review of the designated shelters girected by the
Plan. mergenc
Readﬁdd Managgemgnt Director.
Fire Verifies warnings
Department before dissemination
Alerts the Emergency
Operations Center Staff
when it is activated
Disseminates a warning
to the public using
sirens, public address
systems, town agencies,
volunteers, and media
as required.
Readfield s  Participates in Reports to the EQOC and
Admin. Staff annual testing or contacts
review of the communications, office
Plan. supply, and other
vendors as directed.
Ensures the EOC is
equipped with the
necessary office
supplies, area maps,
and easel
Ensures that -
information received
from departments
deployed in the figld is
recorded and passed to
the Emergency
Management Director
for evaluation
Tracks all expenses that
relate to Town recovery
efforts
Provides disaster
notifications to Town
employees
12-10-2022

Page 35




Volunteer
personnel

Verifies warnings
before dissemination
Assist the Fire
Department in warning
the public, as directed

Conducts door-to-door
warnings necessary for
part of the population.

Verifies that nursing
homes, major industries
and other key locations
have been notified.

Provides support under
the direction of the Red
Cross at shelters.

Maintains a log of
incoming and outgoing
messages concerning
shelter operations,

American
Red Cross

Recruits necessary
volunteers to
compliment the
Shelter Operations
Staff.

Manages the

emergency shelters.

Provides assistance
in feeding with any
volunteers.
Members of the

American Red Cross

and volunteers,
recruited from
County agencies or
the local populace,
will constitute each
individual shelter
organization,

An American Red
Cross representative
may report to the
Emergency Operations
Center when necessary
to assist in the
coordination of shelter
operations.

Coordinates with the
Town Emergency
Management Director
for any additional
support that can be
provided by local
government agencies.
Shelters in the Town of
Readfield will not
normally be stocked.
The American Red
Cross will obtain
supplies through local
sources when possible.
Health requirements
and inquiries about
missing persons will be
the responsibility of the
American Red Cross
assisted by Town
Health Officer, if
necessary.

12-10-2022
Page 36




Appendix 7 Forms to be used in materials procurement during an emergency

See separate attached FEMA sheet examples.

12-10-2022
Page 37




Appendix 8: Acronyms used in this document

“Town” = Town of Readfield

“Plan” = Town of Readfield’s Emergency Operations Plan
“EOP” = Emergency Operations Plan

“NIMS” = National Incident Management System
“EMA”, “County EMA” = Kennebec County Emergency Management Agency
“EOC” = Emergency Operations Center

“P10” = Public Information Officer

“ARC” = American Red Cross

“HAZMAT” = Hazardous Materials

“DEP” = Maine Department of Environmental Protection
“EMS” = Emergency Management Services

*MEMA” = Maine Emergency Management Agency
“KSO or KCSO” = Kennebec County Sheriff’s Office

12-10-2022
Page 38




Appendix 9: Town businesses

A list has been developed and will be updated periodically by the Town Office, with a
copy sent to the Fire Department. Updated list will be included in the EQC kits.

12-10-2022
Page 39




Appendix 10: Annual Review, Testing, and Training Checklist

The checklist below should be used to ensure annual review and testing requirements are

completed.
Training
Courses Trainee Date(s)
100, 700, 701, 702 and 704 Emergency COMPLLETED
Management Director
100, 700 Town Manager COMPLETED
Select Board
100, 700 1 Dennis Price
100, 700 2 Kathryn Woodsum
100, 700 3 Carol Doorenbos
100, 700 4 Sean Keegan
100, 700 5 Steve DeAngelis
Review
Review Item Reviewed By Date(s)
Department Head Review All 12/15/2022
Town Manager Review Manager 111222022
Fire Dept. Emergency Supplies
Gile Hall Emergency Supplies
EOC Kits Manager / Maintenance | In Process
Select Board Review 12/12/2022
Testing
Testing Item Participants Date(s)
Tabletop Exercise
Full Test
12-10-2022

Page 40




Required ICS Training for Maine NIMS Compliance

Discipline

IS 29

IS 100

IS 200

1S 700

15703

IS 800

ICS 300

ICS 300

G191

G402

Other

Notes

Senior Local / County
Appointed / Elected Officials

Local Emergency
Management Director

County Emergency
Management Director

Public Works Director

Public Works / Road
Commissioner

Scheool / Campus
Emergency Team Leaders

2,7

School / Campus Emergency
Team

Public Utilities Management

Public Utilities Worker

Hospital Emergency Respanse
Team (HERT)

> x| x >

xox x| X

EMS Department Heads /
Deputies

b

>

EMS Supervisors

b

EMS Technicians / Operators

State / County / Local Law
Enforement Department
Heads / Deputies

State / County / Local Law
Enforement Supervisors

State / County / Local Law
Enforement Officers

Fire Service Department
Heads / Deputies

Fire Service Supervisors

Fire Service Firefighters




Discipline IS29 | I1S100 |1S200|1S700|15703 (1S 800|ICS 300(1CS 400| G191 | G402 | Other | Notes
DST / RRT HAZMAT
. X X X 5
Technicians
DST / RRT HAZMAT
] X X X X X
Operations / Responders
IS 706 1S
X X
MACC / EOC Management X X X 2200
MACC / EOC Staff X X X
Position
X X X 6
IMAT Level li / IV X X X X Specific
Public Information Officers /
] X X X 6
Designees
Communication Center
Supervisor / Deputy X X
Supervisor

_no:=ﬁ< EMA Director may require members filling specific roles to be trained to higher levels than this crosswalk details.

Note 1: All elected/appointed officials charged with general Policy Development.

Note 2: Includes at @ minimum the Principal and Assistant Principal.

Note 3: Includes Water and Sewer Districts.

Note 4: Recommended by the Regional Resource Centers.

Note 5: Technicians not expected to fill a Command or General Staff position are not required
to take ICS 300.

Note 6: IMAT personnel are required 1o take additional courses depending on their Type and
level of Incident Management Responsibility.

Note 7: School/Campus EM personnel with a critical/ieadership role in facility emergency
response although it is recommended leadership personnel that may act in absence of first
responders should additionally complete ICS 300 and 400.

Note 8: EMA Directors, MACC/EOC Management and Staff, IMAT Level lIl/IV Staff, Public
Works Directors, Chiefs/Deputies of full-time fire departments, Chiefs/Deputies of County
level law enforcement agencies and full-time police departments with 15 or more full-time
officers, EMS Agencies with more than 15 full-time personnel.




ﬂ Target Audience Guidance from the NIMS Five-Year Training Plan

The information provided below, comes directly from the National Integration Center (NIC) and is inciuded to provide additional
clarification for the requirements outlined above and to assist in making any training related decisions that have not been
addressed.

IS 29: Public Information Officer Awareness

The Public Information Officer Awareness Course (IS0029} is designed te familiarize participanis with the concepts underlying the
PIO role. This course can provide a basic understanding of the PIO function for those new to the position. Additionally, it can
provide those in executive level roles the necessary knowledge of PIO roles and responsibilities during an emergency.

Online Course: :Eum“\\qm_m:m:m.*mSm.mo<\mm\nocn..mo<mEMmE.mmuxunoamn_m-Nw.m

IS 100, introduction to the Incident Command System

introduces the Incident Command System {ICS) and provides the foundation for higher leve! ICS training. This course describes the
history, features and principles, and organizational structure of the Incident Command System. It also explains the relationship
between ICS and the National Iincident Management System (NIMS).

Online Course: https://training.fema.gov/is/courseoverview.aspx?code=15-100.c

IS 200, Basic Incident Command System for Initial Response

Reviews the incident Command System (ICS), provides the context for ICS within initial response, and supports higher level ICS
training. This course provides training on, and resources for, personnel likely to assume a supervisory position within ICS.
Online Course: https://training.fema.gov/is/courseoverview.aspx?code=1S-200.c

IS 700: Introduction to the National Incident Management System

This course provides an overview of the National incident Management System (NIMS). The National Incident Management System
defines the comprehensive approach guiding the whole community - all levels of government, nongovernmental organizations
{NGO), and the private sector - to work together seamlessly to prevent, protect against, mitigate, respond to, and recover from the
effects of incidents. The course provides learners with a basic understanding of NIMS concepts, principles, and components.

Online Course: https://training.fema.gov/is/courseoverview.aspx?code=IS-700.b

IS 703: National incident Management System Resource Management

The goal of the National Incident Management System Resource Management course is to introduce federal, state, local, tribai, and
territorial emergency managers, first responders, and incident commanders from all emergency management disciplines to NIMS
Resource Management. This includes private industry and volunteer agency personnel responsible for coordination activities during
a disaster.

Online Course: https://training.fema.gov/is/courseoverview.aspx?code=I15-703.b




iS 800: Introduction to the National Response Framework

Provide guidance for the whole community. Within this broad audience, the Naticnal Response Framework focuses especially on
those who are involved in delivering and applying the response core capabilities, including Private sector partners, Non-
governmental organizations (NGOs), Government officials, Community leaders, Emergency Management practitioners, and First
responders,

Online Course: https://training.fema.gov/is/courseoverview.aspx?code=15-800.d

ICS 300: Intermediate ICS for Expanding Incidents

Provides training and resources for personnel who require advanced knowledge and application of the ICS. This course expands
upon information covered in the 15-100 and 1S-200 courses.

In Person Course

1C5-400: Advanced ICS

This course provides training and resources for personnel who require advanced application of ICS. This course expands upon
information covered in ICS-100 through ICS-300.

In Person Course

G-191: Incident Command System/Emergency Operations Center Interface

This course reviews ICS and EOC responsibilities and functions and depends heavily on exercises and group discussions to formulate
the interface. The course provides an opportunity for participants to begin developing an interface between an Incident
Management Team and EOC personnel.

In Person Course

|Updated November 17, 2021




o N ] Readfield Select Board
Community Resilience List of Community Actions December 12 2022
Partnershlp '

e Item # 23-062

The L[St of Commu nlty Actions are suggested activities for communities that align with the goals and
strategies of Maine Won’t Wait. Communities will use the List first as a self-assessment tool to aid in
determining where progress has already been made, then as a guide for ldentlfylng future priorities and
funding opportunities.

All of the actions on the List —~ from planning projects to developing ordinances to capital improvements
— are eligible for no-match Community Action Grants. Communities are encouraged to combine multiple
related actions from the Inventory into a single application. Recognizing that some communities have in-
house capacity and others do not, the grants may fund staff time or be used to hire external capacity,
such as a consultant or regional planning organization, to assist with the project.

Community Action Grants are capped at $50,000 for individual communities and $100,000 for
collaborative projects from a cohort of two or more communities. Action-specific caps may also apply
(for example, communities may request up to a certain amount per electric vehicle purchase). -

Community Action Grants may be used to augment other state funding opportunities, such as Efficiency
Maine’s rebate programs. However, the applicant must demonstrate that the other source of funding
has been or will be maximized before funding from a Community Action Grant is allowed. For example, a
town wishing to purchase an electric vehicle or upgrade to energy efficient LED lighting must
demonstrate that Efficiency Maine’s incentives are being applied first to the project budget.

Communltv: Resilience Partnershln . Offlce of p0|ICV Innovatlon'& Future"(ma[ne gov}: -




6 40 T 93ed TZOT ‘T 4oqwiadaQ pasinay

‘Yjjeaya[al pue uoijednpa 210Wal 0] SSad2e

(S) s1ueJd auinionJiseljul pue suiuue|d aulglp 129UU0D ‘uiinwwos3|a3 Joddns 0] SJUSPISAU PIAISSISPUN J04 JauJalul paads ysiy| o1y
03 $$2228 8UISEaJOUl AQ BALIP 01 PR3uU 3yl seJnpad 1yl uejd puegpeoJq e ydopy
"Jsues) pue

§199J1S 313|dwo) 10d 3uleiN 6v

‘sasn ueuysapad/ayiq ‘Alajes sassalppe Yoiym Adljod s1ea.41s a1e|dwo) e 1dopy
‘(uoneylodsuell
pue 3uisnoy Jeau 1uawdo|aAap Jo Alisuap 3ujdeinodua Al s|doad

alaym Jeau Suiddoys pue ‘saoejdylom ‘sjooyds 3uiles0| "8:3) SulALIp Jo) pasu o
ay3 aonpaJ 1eyy sapod pue sue|d uj sapdijod JuswdojsaAsp pue Isn pue| 1dopy
H9am Jad sAep swos AjgloWwal yJom ued 3%

1eY3 suonisod Jie1s uswulanog [equi/edidiunw Joy Adljod yloma|al e 1dopy
"s3|21yaA Aouednaoo

-2|8uls 01 S3AI1BUIBYJE JBY10 JO Yjem/ayIq ‘Usues) d1ignd ‘sjoodied eia[ gy
31INWwol 01 sasAo|dwa |equi/|eddiunw adeinodus jeyl saldaiel]s wuswa|dw|
"2Jn3onJiseljul Supjiem pue ay1q ulpn|dul ‘sapow uollodsuedy

aAllewIae pue diysiapll 1suell ognd sseatoul Jeyl salgaledls uswa|duw
(LINA) pajanea S9Nl 9121y 2INpay pue Ao arolduw|

Qv

3p0) [eddiuniA JogJeH Jeg :3jdwex3 "3oueuUIpJo ulpl-iue ue ydopy| Y
{(uoIsSSIWIWIO) JuBWdo|aAa( "seale Bupjied o1gnd pue ‘sassaulsng ‘sUlj|aMmp Ajlwesnw £
pue uiuue|d aUleAl UI3YIN0S) 1|00 | SSaulpeay 3[21YyaA 214103|3 [edidiunip| 18 Suipn|oul ‘@injanJisesjul Buidieyd A3 28e4noaus 03 sedueUIp.o Jdopy
(S) aaneniunuswdinba A|ddns A3 “aule| Aduaidijy3 ‘seaJe Supied ogqnd ul suadieyd A j|Blsul| Zv
‘A3 A1np 1y3)| 4ad ‘7S 1e padded s1ueln) '$193|) 9|21YaA
() 5e18qaJ A [ediDIUNIA -SUIRN A2UBIDIY3 TR AP IR BEbi0es 38 B 2 S v

P3UMO-1USWIUISA0S [BqLY JO [BAIDIUNW JOJ S3|2IYBA D14303|3 35B3| JO 358Ydind

9UIBW-1UI|IS31/a1BWI|3/3IN)N}/ADS BUIBLL MMM

: . diysiauned
A03'BulEW @ a1IRIq e UBLI] &
a1R4quy ueng :3oejuo) wesdold SUOIDY AlUnNWWwIo) .._.O 1517 2IUB!|1S=Y Alunwwo)




6 J0 7 @8ed

‘(Youne| wesgoud a1e3s Suipuad)
(4ad) 1ey) uosuedwo) ued] Agisug ;sureN Aouaidiig 3Jn1onaiseul Suidieyd A3 pue ‘saunseaw Adusdiys ABisus ‘swalsAs ABusus| 019
S|geMaual |[BISUl 01 S13UmMo Aladoud |BI2USWIWIOI J0) 92URUIPIO JDVd-D 1dopy

"s3uluie)l 3poa s,aulel Aduaidilg Ajjenadss

sgululel] suleA ADUiDI ,
2 A e ‘S13211J0 1USWS2404U3 3p0I J0) 1uswdo|aaap |euoissajold uendsl oddng BE
(uoisSiwwo) uswdoanag "UOIIINIISUOD
pue uiuue|d aulel UIaYInos) 1|00 SSaUIpeay 32IysA 214123|3 [edidiunip] MBU ||& 404 SSauIpeal A8iaus Je|0s pue ssaulpeal 8ujdieyd AJ aJinbay 29
TZ0¢ 2P0D UOIIBAISSUC) ASJauT [eucneulald] (TZ0z 2231 Ajpusuuna) spod 3uip|ing yaiaais Adusiolyys ABlaus ayy idopy| /9

s3uip|ing M3 JO UOIINJISUOD pue usisag 9yl duenpy

's302load u013aNIISUOD Ul (UCIIB|NSUL J3GI-poOM ‘Jaquli} ssew "8'9) s1onpoud

9d
152104 aule|n Ajpuaiy-a1ewld aziiuoud o3 sainijod uswaindoud 1snlpy

‘(a1q1550d 313ym BUIIYSI|UMOP
(SECFESEICREEENENESIERITE] Yym uonnjjod 81 szjwiuiw pue) 3uiiysd) g3 uspis A3isus yum saiijney|  gg
paumo-Ajlequi/Ajledioiunw Joj Sunydl Jousixs pue s1ysijiealis apelddn

"S3uIp|ing |equy/jedidiunw Ul ujeay Jajem

101295 21|gnd suleN Aduaid
I-ORRS Hignd BUlEH S dwnd 1eay pue 3ulj003/3unesy Joj WalsAs JYA Jo WalsAs dwind jeay e |jeisu| F
(S) 101235 21|qnd ‘2UIe| ADUSIDIT sguip|ing |equi/jedidiunw ul sasueldde Jusidiye Aisua 0) apelddn| €9
(S) 103235 21|qNd -aule|A ASUB1D11IT "s3ulp|ing jequy/jedidiunw u Suilysi) Jouslul Jusidiys Adisus 01 spesddn| 79

"sjuawsnosdwl 3ulp|ing |[00YJS 104 JO1ISIP |00YIS |B20|
(S) 101035 211gnd saule|A AdusPIg| Yyum s1eloge|o] 's3ulp|ing |equy/jedidiunw Joy syuswanoidwi uoilezusyiesm| Tg
adojaaus 3ulp|ing pue Asusidiys A3isus Joj uejd e a1ndaxa pue 1dopy

mmc_t__:m_ _mn:._.\_ma_u_c:_\,_ ul seouelddy juaidiy] pue ‘8uljoo) pue 3uijesH Jaues|) 01 Uoljisued|

s3uip|ing s,aule|\ 3zZIUIBPOAl :g ealy ASsjens




6 40 ¢ aded

‘("1 ‘@315 playumolq ‘||Ijpue| ‘eale uoidalold

(S) edouswy Jof AZI1auT |eany 3uswdo[aAsq [BinY vYASN peay|jam ‘doljood jooyds "8'a) Auadoud |equi/jedidiunw uo (233 ‘uonsadip| /D
JlgoJaeue ‘|ewJayloas ‘puim ‘Je|os) 10aloud A31aus ajgemauad e ||eisu|
"A8uaua ajgemauals woiy swod saijddns Aiaua

(S) eduswy 104 AFISUT [eany -1uswdojaAaq [einy vasn JUBWIUJBA0S |BDO| SuIsSeaJouUl 3unsua 03 AJjjod aseyaund Jamod ues|d e ydope| g)

JO (Vdd) 3uswaa.8e aseyoind Jamod J0o 10BJ1U0D 3D1AJ3S WIS3-8U0| B OJUl J91U3

A34au3 uea|) o1 uonisuel)

"SUOI1B||B1SUI
ddyue|os :AS1au3 Jo Juawieds
R 34 10 ABlaua a|gemaual 3|eds-||ews o} $$3204d Suilnwiad pauljwesns e ydopy =
‘suolie||eisul a8elols AB1aus pue ASIaua a|qemaual aleldoidde-Ayunwiwiod
9DUBISISSE |BDIUyDa] pue WelsoJd PJeWS[0S 304 SN /8]

S28e4N0JUB JO ‘S3|gEeUS ‘SMO||e Jey] (s)adueulpto ASJ1aua ajgemaual e 1dopy

uondopy A34au3j ues|) a2

ueApy

"$198.4e) § 91818
9y3 yum usije 1eyl suonesado |equi/ediunw woly ASisus ues|d Supueape
pue suolssiwa udnpad Joj uejd e pue 153483 8ui115$ uoiin|osads e 1dopy

€D

(aue

Aoua1o1443 wou) sa1eqad dund 1eay o Jagwinu ‘sjsued Jejos yuim sawoy Jo
Jagquwinu ‘Allunwiwiod 3yl Ul paJalsidad sA3 Jo Jaquinu “8'3) uoidNpal SUOISSIWa
ANuNWWEd 104 SI01BDIPU| SUOISSIWS JO 195 paljjdwis e yoet) pue Ajauap)

[0

'$924N0S
A31aua Jay1o pue ‘sjany uoneuodsuel) pue Sunnesy ‘A1101323]9 Sulpnjoul
1UsWulsA0s |equi/jedidiunw Ag a8easn A319uUs U0y 3UI|3SEQ B 1INPUCD

10

suoissiwg (9HD) sen asnoyuaalo aInNpay

uonenouuj A31au3 uea)) ySnoiys suoissiwg Inpay :) ealy ASaiens




6 40 1 93ed

‘sue|d
1USWdO|SASP 2IWOU0I3 Ul Sal1Isnpul AB1sus ues|d oddns pue a3eunodul 20
‘Alunwwiod
Ul 91820 01 $35$3UISN JO AJ1Snpul ABISUS UBd|d 404 SIAIIUSIUI YSI|ge1s] il
"Juswdojaasp
WeJ301d pueT s,EdlJaWy dullamoday vd3 sn | 19aload adeanodus pue sioaloud ABisus ues|d 404 $211$ paleulwelu0d/paqinisip|  €Q

pue p|aijumolg psumo-Ajaieald Jo AJljigelins ayl ssassy

sassaulsng pue sqor Agiau3 ues|d M

oddnsg

's10a(oud uo11NIISUOD Ul (UOIIB|NSUl J3qI-pooMm ‘Jaguui} ssew “§°a) s1onpoud
159404 auUle|A Ajpusiii-s1ewWl|d az1oud 01 salo1jod Juawsaandodd 1snipy

cd

"suspJesd Allunwiwod uipn|oul ‘uondwnsuod
pue uollanpoJd pooy |B20| azZIAlusdUl 40 ‘uoddns ‘3|qeus 1ey) saidijod 1dopy

1d

Awouod3 32un0say |einieN s,aulely poddns

S9LIISNPU| 321N0S3Y [einjeN 3931014 pue sqof mouo :q ealy A3ajens




640 g a8ed

"32UBI|ISS] ALUNWWOD

9IUB]ISISSY |BJ1UYDda] pue "eleq 'sdep :WEJIS04d Sealy |ednie
ERERIERE o . H (BTN pUE sJ3}jng pooj} aseaJoul 01 ulejdpooj) oyl Ul 3deds uado 129304d pue Ajnuap| O
SJUBISISSY |EDIUYDS | pue 'ele( 'sdely :WeIig0.d sealy [ednieN JA|  "seaJe uolledSiw Ysiewl|es pue saulja4oys 3ulnl] 4oy $931s 193304d pue Ajuap|| 63
"S3YB| PUB ‘SISAIJ ‘S3UI1SR0 10} UOI1D3104d BuljaJ0ys
padueyua Aj|e2180|023 JO paseq-ainleu ‘jednleu aziiuoud 1eyl saioljod 1dopy 83
‘wesdoud uonosslold uaiem 324nos e uawa|dwy| /3
'suolleingal Jayio Jo Buluoz Y3nodyl sweauls Jalempesy pue
‘seaJe ueledl ‘SpUBjIaM SB UONS SeaJe |Bdnleu Pauslealyl-21ewWl|d 8AISs3.d =
"seaJe uenedll ul S1944ng pue suie|dpool) 198UU0d3l pue a1el1e8aAs) ‘BAIBSUOD| ST
2JUB]SISSY |BJIUYD®] pue 'Bleg "Sde| ‘Welsold Sealy |ednie SR PO Slessals
FRFRPOLE g ! e WISV A 31BWI|D SIPN|JUl 1BY] AJOIUDAUI 1BLIGEY PUB 324N0S3J |ednjeu e dojanaq ¥
"suoiido uoneldepe pue sanolud
Aljenb Jaiem pue Suipooyj Ajizuspl 01 uejd paysialem e alepdn Jo 31eal) =
*AJIAITOSUUOD J91EM pUB PUB| PUB ‘S320|q
adojaaapun ‘seaJe Alisiaaipolq Y3y o1 paie|ad sded uoealasuod Juissaippe
1e1IgEH YlM Buluuisag M| L 2 . e TR g . BR 73
uo Ajuond e ypum ‘(Aladoud umoy padojaaspun Buipnppul) €0z Ag Allunwiwod
341 Ul puUB| 4O %0¢€ Bulniasuod Jo suejd UOIIEAISSUOD OJU] [B0S B 9)e40dlodu|
‘uoneJisanbas uogued pue sadeds a1|gnd Ul $$3208 J31EM
(S) Adoued 303lodd 40va T3

pue apeys aseaJoul 03 Sunjue|d 9243 pue a2eds U343 BulseaJoul Jo) $1934.]1 135

SI9}e\ PUB Spue] SunjJop\ pUe |enieN 19310.d

SUOIIN|OS Aewl|) [eanieN 910W04d 73 JUSWUOIIAUT 3Y] 199104 :3 ealsy ASaqens




6 40 9 95ed

(4ad) seniunwiuo) auleA J10J [BNUBA ugisaq 12edul] Mo "JuswaseuewW J21BMULIOIS JO) pJepuels (q)]) uSisap 1oedwi-mo) e 1dopy| 714
"s19sse uedsayl-8uo| pue 34N13NJISeJjul [BD11LID pIBEOqa3l)
Jay3Iy pue eade plezey pooj) jerpads ay3 ul syuswalinbas pieoqaaly 1dopy R
Juswdo|ansp |e1seod Buniiwiad
pue suluued ul syoedw) pue suooafoad asi |9A3] B3S JO UOIIEISPISUOD adinbay £k
‘ueld
uonesiiw piezey yinNg AJunod 4o [B20| 3y} ul suoiidsfoud asu [9n9)] eas dej o
"S1UBPISAL ALUNWWOoD
Wwi21sAS Funey Ajlunwiwo) §, A3 ; 84
104 S3UIARS 3IURINSUI POO|4 SUIZILUIXBW ‘13113 JO g SSBD SYD 931UV
‘SJuapIsss Alunwiwod 1o swniwald soueansul pooj) duldnpal
wia1sAs duney Ayunwwo) s yINI4 /4
19115¢ 40 6 Sse|) 18 (SYD) wa1sAs Suney Allunwiwio) S,d14N 343 ul jolu]
wa1sAs Buney Ajunwitio) s, v¥IN 34 ‘(d14N) weiBoud saueinsu| poo|4 |euonen syl ul aredidiled| 94
1SIP93YD) 20usl|isay POO|H SUIEA| "1SIP23YD 2JUBl|Isay Poo|d aulel ayi 813|dwo)| G4

3S1y OO 2npay

‘ue|d Juswsdeuew sSSP WI01s e dojpAsg| 4
‘sue|d uojlendens AJlunwiwod pue swalsAs uiulem Ajues aoueyus Jo dojanag| €4
‘s1oedw) a8ueyd a1eWID 01 9IU|IS3) 3SEAIIUI pue AljIgeISUINA
9INpaJ 0} $318318415 21)199ds AJI3USP] PUE SUOIIPUOD auniny/Buidueyd| 74
ssalppe 01 ued uonesdiniw piezey yiN3 Alunod Jo (30| 3yl s1epdn
‘(uejd aaisuayaidwod
e Ul papn|aul 4o ueld suojepuerls B 9q ABW) S3111|IGBISUINA PUB 3514 SUIdNpaJ 10y
5318318415 Ajaond Y31y sequasap eyl ueld aouaijisad alew D e ydopy sannod| T4

pue sue|d 3uilsIXa JO M3IA3J B $3pN|2Ul pue suoiieindod s|qesau|na pue
SSIJ @1BWID S3I1IUSPI 1BY] JUBLWISSasSE AlljigeJau|nA AJlUNWWOD e 30NpUo)

J0ual|Isay Ajunwwo) 1oy ue|d

sanIuUNWWOo) Ju3ijIsay @ AYljeaH pjing :4 ealy ASaiens




6 40 / a3¢ed

[WIYSX2pul/wnnaring "S3SEISIP 2UJ0G-211 pue -0}nbsow

-|o0y2s/1da,/35eas1p-SnoId2jul /2Pl /SYYpP/A0Z sule W MMM//-SA11Y| 4O uoIjuaAsad Inoge s1uapnis a3eanps 03 sweldoid paseq-j0oyas uawa|du 5
(4Qd]) Seniunuwwo) pue SUMo] aulejp "1elIgey ounbsow 3seaudsp 01 $|0J3U0 J0323A Junuawa|dwl

10J 22uepIing asuodsay 1§ UOIIUSA3Id SSaU||| aUl0g-01NbSOIA DQD auleiy AQg $95E3SIP SUI0G-03INbsow 03 32U31|IS3J [3A3]-AUUNWWOD 3SB34JU| gHd
'SIUSAS PO JO JB3Y SWUIX3 Julnp siaquisuwl

Allunwwod 3jgesaujnA uo ul Surydayd Joy weltdoid Jaad-03-192d e ysi|qeisy Sk
SJ21Ua) 3u1j00) "syuspIsal AQ sJ91ua2 ulj002 JO 35N 3SEaIdU 1BY] S91891R.1S

JO 35 PUB SUB|d 3SUOdSaY 183K :S20UN0S3Y J2¥ 2.l YI|eaH 3 18aH OdD SN| 3Suipnjoul ‘ued Acuasiawa sainilesadwal awaJdixa ue juawa|dwi pue dojarag v
"'98ueyd s1ewl|d Ag paleqladexs

193YSYJIOAN SUIUUE|4 Y}|BaH 73 S1BWID PUE SPJED WIEH Y3|BaH DdD SN €14
2Je 1.yl Allunwiwod syl Ul s1ealyl yiesy a1gnd aonpaus 03 uejd pue Aji3usp)

UYi|eaH 21jgnd uayiduaulg




6 40 g 93ed

HROERSENCEY T oRel[e[eNET=IV]=)

‘1e]0s) |eljualod ABI3uUa UBD|D J0) $3IH|ID8) JUSLUIRSI]) J91EMIISEM S5IS5Y 23
‘spuny juswanoldu

(S) 3pIN9 123204 pue sjuelIg SFUISSO.D 1JeWS WeaulsS 433 d3Q 4o} Ajdde pue s8uiss0Jd a|qetaulna Ajnuap| 'stuawanocsdwi a8plg pue| o9
14aA|N2 1oy 32110ead paepuels Se SauljapIng SulssoJd) LIBWS wealls s,43Q 1dopy
‘seaJe padojanap

Ul J91eMULI0]Ss 98eueLl 03 ainjanJiseljul uaald sazinuoud eyl Adljod e 1dopy b2
"SIUSAS JOYIBaMm SW341XS UlINp Uol1duUN) Ulelsns pue adewep |edisAyd aanpau

01 S2131]10B} 1UBLLIESJ] J31BMBISEM PUE Jalem Supup 123104d pue anosdw) €2

a.njonJiseljul anoidwi 03 sa2i1deud pue ‘susdisap ‘spiepuels Apeal-alewi|d azijiin

"U0I3oNJISUOD

M3U Jo/pue sjuswanoidwi ul asual|isad sazijidoud (g pue ‘s1esse pue ssiljide)| 79
|equi/|ediunw ajgedaujna saljiluapl (e 1eyy ue|d Juawisaau| [eude) e dojsaag
"AJlUNWIWOI 3yl Uo aAey
[|IM 24NI2NJISEILUL 3Y] 10 a4n|iey 40 Juswaiedwl eyl saousnbasuod ayl (g pue

‘Jiedal JO 3135 pUB ‘UoI1IpuUOd ‘93e ‘UBISOP ‘UDIIBIO| UDSAIS 4n|ie) 4o aFewep =

01 AJ|1gidaosns 3yl (Z ‘awi 130 a8ueyd ||Im POOYI|Sl| PUe AlSUa1ul 3yl moy
pue 3sodxa aJe S13SSE 2JN12NJISEIUI YdIYm 01 spaezey 31ewl|d ay3 (T :sapnjoul
1BY1 24N10NJISEIIUI ALUNWIWIOD |BII1LID 10} JUSWISSDSSE AJI|IGRISUINA B 1INPUOD)

34n3onJiseljul o AJ|IGRISUINA S3BWI|D SSISSY

ainynujselju] Apeay-ajew|) ul 3SaAu| :9 eaay ASajeals




6 JO 6 98e(

"S9SS3UISNG pUR S1USPISal

aAllenIu| i BulyiAuang AJ11123|3,, S,PUBHOd P315aJ3lUl JOJ JB|OS pue sdwnd jeay se yons juawdinba 3500 mo| apiaoad|  /H
0} ‘SIOPUDA JO “Jopuan e yum wesdosd Suiseyoind 3 ng AJUNWWOD e 31e1Iu|
'$35$3UISN]

9H

guowe a3u3|eyd 4o udledwed uoanpaJl A34sus ue Joddns pue aiesl)
diysiapea| ajew|d aziudodaa. pue AJlunwwod ssauisng ayl asesuy

"UoIINP3J SUCISSIWS OHO pue ‘A3iaus

uea|2 ‘@2ud||1s3aJ Ul s1oedWI 31BWID 01 3|gRJauUiNA aJe eyl suone|ndod aBesu3
‘uononpaJ asn ASuaua pue ‘AB1aua uea|d ‘@oual|isal ul yinoA asesul| pH
(8uyoeuy/no3-yijeayoigndaulew-eiep) '219 ‘SpuaJl] 9SEISIP SUJ0FJ01IBA

$9SEJSIP BUJIOGHDI1 JO ‘SSBU||l P|OD ‘SSBU||l 1B3Y BWIl-|ead Jeau Jo sAejdsip| ‘swoo|q |eS|e |njwley ‘syealgino aseasip aulogdalem ‘sageino Jamod ‘swiols
yomisN Sunyoed] JIA ((jwiyxapul/auozo/iie/dsp/A0S auUlRW) S31IOSIADPE DUJDIIXD ‘S]UBAS P|0OD JO 1BDY BUIDIIXD ‘SSLIOSIAPE All|END JIB SB YINS ‘SIUSAS
Ayllenb die 43Q ‘(4ed/A08 Jayieam pue XA3/A03 Ja1eam) SI1I0SIAPE SAAN Jayieam pue yjjeay paile|aJ-a1ewl|d 1o} salosiApe yyeay angnd Apjdwy

SH

€H

"S3SSBUISNQ PUE SIUBPISaJ Jo) uoeldepe pue uonesiiw uo §uisndoy

eoH Allunwiwo aIjewl
e} {3eRH A SR ‘Weltdoud Juswadedus pue ‘Yaealino ‘ucneanps sgueyd aewld e aleal) £

uoi3de el 03 saniunjioddo pue sypedwi aSueyd alewi|d Jo ssauaieme 1jgnd aseadau|

'SJIP|OYIY LIS ANUNWWIOD JO 32330 |BI121440 Ue 9ziu80daJ Jo ysijgelsd| TH

9|doad auiel\ @8e3u] :H eaay ASajeuls




Community ReSiIience Program Contact: Brian Ambrette

brian.ambrette@maine.gov
Pa rtnerShlp Community Resilience Partnership | Office of Policy Innovation & Future (maine.gov)

Community Resilience Self-Evaluation

Instructions: This tool is intended to help organize your community’s approach to increasing resilience
to natural hazards and climate change impacts. Answer the questions to the best of your knowledge and
seek information from your colleagues in municipal and county government and organizations in your
community. Provide any relevant information in the explanation field. If it is difficult to give a clear yes
or no response to a question, use the explanation field to explain why. There are no wrong answers and
the responses here will not affect your community’s eligibility to receive grants. Where the response
to a question is no, that may indicate an area of opportunity to address through a Community Action
Grant.

Community name: Town of Readfield

Self-Evaluation responses provided by: | Eric Dyer, Town Manager

Please include contact info manager@readfieldmaine.org
207-685-1818
Date: November 30, 2022

Was this evaluation discussed during a | Not Yet...
community workshop? Include the date
of the workshop.

Once the questions on the following pages are complete, use these prompts to identify potential next
steps for your community:

What are two things your community is | 1) Providing consistent land use planning and regulation

doing well? consistent with our rural residential character.
2) Prioritizing outdoor recreation investment as a community
focus.
What are two areas that could be 1) Balancing staffing levels with community needs (we are short-
improved in the short-term? staffed).

2) Continuing to invest in technology to increase efficiency and
service provision.

What is important for your community | We have a need for age-friendly and workforce housing, as well

to address in the long-term? as outdoor recreation facilities to attract and retain residents.
What specific 3 to 5 actions are Taken from the 2022 Select Board Planning Retreat Report:
priorities for your community? 1} Build a community park at the Fairgrounds property.

2) Construct the Church Rd. sidewalk

3) Improve our facilities at the public beach.

4) Provide Parks and Recreation staff support.

5) Build a stronger relationship with Regional School Unit #38.




vector-borne diseases from ticks and mosquitos.

Understanding Sensitivity and Building Resilience

9) Is your community tracking underlying societal
characteristics and trends that increase vulnerability?

X Yes O No

This information might be found in your community’s
comprehensive plan or economic development plan.
Examples of characteristics and trends might include
older or low-income populations, low housing
availability, reliance on a single economic driver, aging
infrastructure, environmental degradation, etc.

Explanation: We are currently updating our
Comprehensive Plan and have observed several changes
and trends in our community demographics - mostly, we
are getting older!

10) Is your community proactively addressing
vulnerabilities associated with these underlying
characteristics?

™ Yes O No

Look in your community’s comprehensive plan or
economic development plan for strategies that might
address these trends.

Explanation: We regularly update a list of vulnerable
community members that is both self-reported and
accepts recommendations from friends and family. We
have an Age-friendly committee that works closely with
AARP. We have a “Handy Helpers” program to offer
assistance to help older residents stay in their homes.

10) Does your community have financial resources in
reserve to cope with or absorb shocks?

X Yes [ No

For example, a rainy-day fund.

Explanation: We have a minimum 2/12 of our full
operating budget in reserve at all times, plus we have
healthy capital reserves and significant borrowing

capacity.
12) Is your community building flexible human capacit
L5y ty B G X Yes I No
that can be drawn on in emergencies?
For example, community emergency response teams Explanation: We rely on and utilize mutual aid on a
(CERT) or mutual aid agreements with neighboring regular basis. We also work to cultivate community
communities. volunteers before emergencies to assist with

administrative and field support.

Improving Long-term Adaptive Capacity

13) Does your community have plans or policies that
anticipate future climate risks and community
sensitivity trends?

X Yes O No

Examples might include a comprehensive plan

Explanation: Our comprehensive Plan update includes a

Page 3



Readfield Select Board

o
S
3
o=
4r..| B >m_u_._OIH_ Sunesiy Eso._.l 2911WwWo) 193png '3 pieog 19995 HEEI 99131WWwo) 198png _H_ pieog uuﬂmml
O
0
£ £
5 o o€
wuu =
) 0€ 6C 8T Lz o9z T4 0g 6¢ 8T 62 8C Lz 9z €T T€ :14
ve £C [44 T1C (014 8T LT 9T S¢ 174 mm. T¢ Zc |14 0z 6T 91 T4 vZ 1z 0z
LE 9T ST T 4] It 0z 61 8T LT 9T ST T ST T €T 4L 6 8T LT 91 ST T
o] 8 6 8 /4 9 ¥ £T Zt 11 0] m. L 8 L 9 S 14 € [4 T ot 6 8 L 9 S
€ 4 1 9 S 14 € Z T T 14 € Z T
S M 1 W S S 1 M 1 N S S E| 1 M 1 W S S & M e N
aunf Aepy Judy yaie\
8T 9z 53 (013 6C 1€ (013 6C 8¢ LT 9z St 0€ 6C 8¢ LT
ST 124 €2 e Tt (014 6T 8¢ LZ 9z 14 e zZ T €T [44 1z 0z 6T 81 9t T4 e €T (44 1z 14
81 L 14 ST T Zt Iz [e]4 6T 8T LT 9T ST LT 9T ST T €T i § T 6T 8T LT 91 ST i €1
Tt (e]8 6 8 L 9 S a8 €T 4 T1 ot 8 0] 6 8 L 9 S 14 1 1T ot 6 8 L g
14 € Z L 9 S 14 £ 4 T £ rd T S 14 £ I T
S M 1 S S 1 M 1 W S S M S S M 4
Asenagaq Asenuer FELTITERETq] JAQWIAON
€ 01 1€
6¢ 8T LT 9z 14 e £¢ [o]34 62 8¢ LT 9z T4 T€E o€ 6T 8C 0€ 6T 8¢ Lz 9t T4 vz
[ I (014 61 81 LT 9T 7T 14 (44 1z 0z 61 8T LT 9z Y4 e 14 (44 1z €T f44 114 (014 61 8T LT
ST 7T £1 [4s 1t 0T 6 LT 91 ST 12" 44 1 Tt [o]4 6T 8T LT 91 ST T 9T ST i €T [4" It ot
8 4 9 S ¥ £ 4 01 6 8 L 9 S 1 £1 45 1 01 6 8 L 6 8 L 9 S 14 £
T 3 4 T 9 S 4 £ T4 T o T
S M S S i1 M L A S S M S M
12qo10 Jaquiaidas isn3ny Anr

7Z0T/8/TT pasirsy

14w¥Q - Jepuaje) Sunas|A £20T Ad

plaIpeay JO umoL



Readfield Select Board
December 12, 2022
Item # 23-064

TOWN OF READFIELD

Certification of Abatement
Tax Year: 2021/2022

U.S. Bank Trust, N.A.
LSF Master Participation Trust

Real Estate Tax: Map 139-003

Account #1192

Location: Huntoon Road

We have abated the following sum of Real Estate Taxes assessed for 2021/2022:
Valuation $149,700

Mil Rate x.01579
Tax Amount $2,363.76

Reason for the abatement: This property was assessed to U.S. Bank Trust in error

Selectmen of Readfield | Date

Dennis Price, Chair

Kathryn Mills Woodsum Vice Chair

Steve DeAngelis

Carol Doorenbos

Sean Keegan




Brenda Struck was foreclosed upon by U.S. Bank Trust in 2017. She subsequently
filed for protection with the Court and was able to refinance and receive her
property back within a year. No notice of the process was received so the
assessment to U.S. Bank Trust continued. All taxes paid to date have been paid by
Ms. Struck. No refund is to be issued to U.S. Bank Trust,




TOWN OF READFIELD
Certification of Abatement
Tax Year: 2020/2021

U.S. Bank Trust, N.A.
LSF Master Participation Trust

Real Estate Tax: Map 139-003
Account #1192

Location: 6 Huntoon Road

We have abated the following sum of Real Estate Taxes assessed for the 2020/2021 Tax
Year

Valuation $137,200
Mil Rate x .01757
Tax Amount $2,410.43

Reason for the abatement: This property was assessed to U.S. Bank Trust in error

Selectmen of Readfield Date

Dennis Price, Chair

Kathryn Mills Woodsum Vice Chair

Steve DeAngelis

Carol Doorenbos

Sean Keegan




Brenda Struck was foreclosed upon by U.S. Bank Trust in 2017. She subsequently
filed for protection with the Court and was able to refinance and receive her
property back within a year. No notice of the process was received so the
assessment to U.S. Bank Trust continued. All taxes paid to date have been paid by
Ms. Struck. No refund is to be issued to U.S. Bank Trust.




OTHER BUSINESS




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY

LEFT BLANK




FYl




ind

_—
30 Mile River

WATERSHED ASSOCIATION

PO Box 132
Mount Vernon,
ME 04352
(207) 860-4043
info @ 30mileriver.org
www.30mileriver.org

Lidie Robbins
Executive Director

Whitney Baker
Program Manager

Lori Putnam
Development
Director

Board of Directors

Kirstie Ludwig
Chair

Nancy Hemphill
Vice Chair

Diana McLaughlin
Secretary

Andy Tolman
Treasurer

Tom Arminio
Buddy Cummings
Doug Frantzen
Bill MacDonald
Cindy Ripley
Jane Rogers
Jeremy Smith
Bill Swan
Susan Tinguely
Andy Tolman
Don Welsh

November 22, 2022

Eric Dyer

Town of Readfield

8 Old Kents Hill Rd
Readfield, ME 04355-4126

Dear Eric,

Thank you for your generous contribution of $2,500, which we received
on 11/2/22. We could not have the impact we are having without the
commitment of our supportive towns and their residents.

With invasive milfoil and algal blooms now threatening one of the lakes
in our watershed, the need for this work is greater than ever. Your
membership supports water quality monitoring and data analysis;
courtesy boat inspections; invasive plant surveys and removal; watershed
surveys; Youth Conservation Corps erosion control projects; LakeSmart
assessments and developing watershed management plans to protect our
lakes.

Our commitment to protecting our precious lakes never stops. As new
threats arise, working together as a community for clean and
healthy lakes, ponds and streams in our watershed has never
been more important. The interconnectedness of our waters means

collective stewardship is vital and only possible because of the support of
our partners.

We cannot thank the residents of the Town of Readfield enough for their
support and caring about our lakes and the quality of life in our precious
watershed.

With appreciation,

~

Lidie Robbins,
Executive Director



